
1

1



2

2



3

3



4

4



5

5



6

6



7

7



8

8



9

9



10

10



11

11



 NICASIO SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

MINUTES 
 

~ Regular Meeting ~ 
 

Thursday, June 1, 2017   5:00 PM  
  

Nicasio School Library   5555 Nicasio Valley Road, Nicasio CA 
and 

Jason Snell via Skype: 
Bad Robot   1221 Olympic Blvd.   Santa Monica, CA 90404     Room 118 

 

 
Initial Matters  

a. Call to Order at 5:06pm 
a. Roll Call In attendance: Trustees Madeleine Sloane, Michelle Rutledge and (via phone) 

Jason Snell. Also in attendance: Superintendent Tom Lohwasser, Principal Barbara 
Snekkevik, MCOE Senior Business Director Kate Lane and Office Manager Mikki 
McIntyre 
 

2. Open Session Agenda 
a. Patriotic Moment in deep gratitude to all the men and women who have served this 

country and those who have given their lives for our country. 
b. Approval and Adoption of Open Session Agenda   

Action: M/S: Rutledge/Snell to approve and adopt Open Session Agenda Vote: 3/0 
Ayes: Rutledge, Sloane, Snell; Noes: None 

 
3. Public Comment  

a. A parent inquired about the status of the Spanish program for 2017-18. Principal 
Snekkevik responded that applications are still being accepted for both the Spanish and 
PE specialist positions, and that interviews are scheduled for the upcoming week.   
 

4. Consent Agenda   
a. Approval of Minutes: May 4, 2017 Regular Meeting of Board of Trustees 
b. Ratify Warrants Paid: April 29-May 24, 2017 
c. Approve IDT Request Out of Nicasio School District (NSD) for 2017-18 

i. IDTX 17-18-03 
Action: M/S: Rutledge/Snell to approve Consent Agenda Vote: 3/0 Ayes: Rutledge, Sloane, 
Snell; Noes: None 
 

5.  Facilities   
a. Broadband Fiber Optic Network Proposal for Nicasio School (This item was heard out of 

agenda order.) 
Action: M/S: Rutledge/Snell to approve moving agenda item #9a forward on the agenda 

12

12

office
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item 5ai



Vote: 3/0 Ayes: Rutledge, Sloane, Snell; Noes: None)  
Discussion: Community member Eric Blantz and INYO Networks project manager Ron 
Volker provided the Board with an overview on the community-wide campaign to bring 
a fiber-optic broadband Internet project to Nicasio. Eric said the vision is to involve the 
community in a program to support world-class connectivity to the school (with better 
service) without costing the district anything.  He said that in working with INYO, the 
community secured a grant to tap into existing fiber-optic capacity and extend it directly 
into a large percentage of the homes as well as to Nicasio School. An additional $1 
million was needed to fund the project and the community quickly stepped up to 
donate those funds, according to Eric. He said the proposed project, in partnership with 
INYO, would bring to the school an alternative to the AT&T Internet service it currently 
receives via the Marin County Office of Education (MCOE). Eric noted that when the 
district’s contract with MCOE comes up for renewal next year, INYO hopes to have a 
better plan available.  There was discussion about technical considerations and a 
proposed rebate structure. Ron Volker described the forms of subsidies the school could 
pursue, citing INYO’s experience in developing successful programs for bringing Gbps 
connectivity to schools. Supt. Lohwasser cautioned that the protection of student 
privacy should be a prime consideration of any effort to provide Internet connectivity to 
all students.  Mark Tong will confer with Dane Lancaster regarding the technical issues. 
Eric said there are several hurdles yet to be overcome before actual funds are collected 
i.e. securing of bonds, permits, etc. Trustee Sloane thanked Eric and Ron for their 
presentation. 
  

6. Reports & Announcements   
a. Water System Update 

Holly McArthur said that although she had previously reported the completion of the 
application to the state for funding of the water project, she later learned that a few 
additional environmental reports are required. Those reports are now underway, she 
said, adding that the District’s portion of the application is now finished.   
 

b. Nicasio School Foundation Update 
NS Foundation President Mark Burton reported year-to-date fundraising results of 
$53,826, which is 98% of NSF’s goal for 2016-17. He said NSF would be able to fulfill the 
school’s request for funding of programs in 2017-18, adding that there might also be 
funds available to support the Internet phone project if needed. Mark said new 
members are needed for the Foundation Board, citing the imminent departure of at 
least two board directors. Mark reported a substantial increase in the donation 
participation rate by school households in recent years. He said when he came onto the 
Board, the rate was 17% compared to a 95% participation rate by families in 2016-17. 
He added that NSF is also trying to raise $60,000 for five years for the broadband 
project, which would result in a 50% rebate to the District.  
 

c. Principal’s Report Principal Snekkevik provided her report.  
Regarding the effectiveness of the school’s Spanish program, an alumni parent said that 
her children went into Spanish 2 as 9th graders.  She said Nicasio School’s Spanish 

13

13



program effectively get students where they need to be in high school. Trustee Rutledge 
noted that Cascade School uses an online Spanish Program, “Viva en Espanol.”  
 

d. Superintendent’s Report 
i. Supt. Lohwasser said he appreciates Principal Snekkevik’s enthusiasm for her 

new role as principal. 
ii. He said the governor’s May budget revision would not yield much for Nicasio 

School in the current school year, but some extra funds are expected for 2017-
18.  
 

e. Trustees’ Report 
i. With regard to the parent survey results indicating 19% of parents who felt the 

Board does not communicate with parents sufficiently, Trustee Rutledge said 
she would like to figure out a way to improve that.  A parent in attendance 
requested that the monthly Board minutes be “pushed” in E-Blast 
communications to parents.  

  
7. Public Hearing on the Nicasio School District 2017-18 Local Control Accountability Plan: The 

Board will hold a public hearing to solicit the recommendations and comments of members of 
the public regarding the specific actions and expenditures proposed to be included in Nicasio 
School District’s 2017-18 Local Control and Accountability Plan.   

a. The public hearing opened at 5:51pm. Principal Snekkevik provided a summary of the 
topics that were covered with parents. Comparing the current year LCAP draft with last 
year’s document, she said there are now two fewer goals – one was removed, and one 
was ‘absorbed” into another goal. Two additional action items on the plan are 1) the 
creation of student study teams; and 2) implementation of a school-wide social 
emotional program for grades K-8 that is focused on community building.  There was no 
public comment. The hearing closed at 5:54pm.  

 
8. Public Hearing on the Nicasio School District 2017-18 Proposed Budget: The Board will hold a 

public hearing regarding the Nicasio School District 2017-18 Proposed Budget, including 
disclosure of the District’s ending fund balance reserves and the District’s statement of reasons 
to substantiate the need for reserves that are higher than the minimum recommended reserve.    

a. The public hearing opened at 5:54pm. Kate Lane provided a budget overview, explaining 
the she and Interim CBO Margie Bonardi worked closely together on the multiyear 
projections (MYP).  Kate reported the following:  

o  A 2% property tax growth rate was used as a conservative projection.   
o The District runs on a $1 million budget, of which nearly $200,000 is funded by 

parcel taxes, approximately $50,000 comes from NSF, and special education 
funds from MCOE are counted as “local money.” There is not a lot of growth 
across the MYP in those revenues. 

o Employee benefits are increasing due to pension increases, and that will be an 
ongoing struggle for all districts. 

o A textbook adoption is budgeted for 2017-18. 
o Costs for special education services are projected at $120,000-$130,000 in each 

14

14



of the next three years, and excess costs for those services will continue to 
increase by 10% per year. The resulting MYP deficit spending ranges from 
$47,000 up to $83,000. 

o The District maintains an excess reserve as a cushion due to its “basic aid” 
funding status and in case the need arises for special education services at a 
non-public school for a year. 

Kate summarized this preliminary look at the proposed budget as being “as conservative 
as it gets.” There was no public comment. The hearing closed at 6:11pm. 

 
9. Finance/Business Services  

a. Approve 2017-18 Technology Services Contract between NSD and Silyco  
Action: M/S: Rutledge/Snell to approve 2017-18 Technology Services Contract between 
NSD and Silyco Vote: 3/0 Ayes: Rutledge, Sloane, Snell; Noes: None 
 

b. Approve 2017-18 MOU for School-Based DIS Counseling (SELPA Collaborative)  
between NSD and Bay Area Community Resources (BACR) 
Action: M/S: Rutledge/Snell to approve 2017-18 MOU for School-Based DIS Counseling 
(SELPA Collaborative) between NSD and BACR Vote: 3/0 Ayes: Rutledge, Sloane, Snell; 
Noes: None 
   

c. Approve 2017-18 Certificate of Signatures  
Action: M/S: Rutledge/Snell to approve 2017-18 Certificate of Signatures Vote: 3/0 
Ayes: Rutledge, Sloane, Snell; Noes: None 

 
d. Consider Resolution 2016-17 #7 Authorization to Sign on Behalf of the Governing Board 

Action: M/S: Rutledge/Snell to approve Resolution 2016-17 #7 Authorization to Sign on 
Behalf of the Governing Board ROLL CALL Vote: 3/0 Ayes: Rutledge, Sloane, Snell; Noes: 
None 

 
10. Facilities  

a. Broadband Fiber Optic Network Proposal for Nicasio School (This item was re-ordered 
on the agenda and addressed earlier in the meeting.) 
 

b. Approve Parking Lot Grading Proposal from Lunny Grading & Paving Inc.  
Action: M/S: Rutledge/Snell to approve Parking Lot Grading Proposal from Lunny 
Grading & Paving Inc. Vote: 3/0 Ayes: Rutledge, Sloane, Snell; Noes: None 
 

11. Personnel  
a. Approve 2016-17 Contract Services Agreement with Marin County Office of Education 

for Support of Superintendent for Business Services (Apr 1-Jun 30, 2017)  
Action: M/S: Rutledge/Snell to approve 2016-17 Contract Services Agreement with 
MCOE for Support of Superintendent for Business Services (Apr 1-Jun 30, 2017) Vote: 
3/0 Ayes: Rutledge, Sloane, Snell; Noes: None 
 

12. Administrative/Governance  

15

15



a. Results of 2016-17 Annual School Survey Information: Principal Snekkevik reported that 
the summarized survey results were shared with the school community through Cougar 
Tracks and in a report to the NS Foundation. 
 

b. Student Dress Code Discussion: Trustee Rutledge said she wanted to propose a change 
in the dress code, which she felt is outdated and enforced inconsistently. With specific 
reference to the length of dresses and shorts, she said that if the rules are not enforced 
with consistency, they should be discarded. Principal Snekkevik reported that the staff 
discussed the dress code, and while agreeing that it is challenging for parents to finds 
appropriate clothing, they concurred that student attire not interfere with learning and 
become a distraction. Supt. Lohwasser advised either enforcing the dress code or 
getting rid of it. He suggested that the policies of other middle schools be researched. A 
parent in attendance added that the dress code should be uniformly applied across all 
grades, not just the middle school.  

 
c. Second Reading BP6173 Education for Homeless Children Discussion: Supt. Lohwasser 

said the revised draft of the policy is almost the same as Dixie School District’s policy 
and that it meets the requirements of the law.  
Action: M/S: Rutledge/Snell to approve BP6173 Education for Homeless Children Vote: 
3/0 Ayes: Rutledge, Sloane, Snell; Noes: None 
 

d. Approve Agreement Between NSD and Petaluma City Schools Regarding Interdistrict 
Attendance Agreement  
Action: M/S: Rutledge/Snell to approve Agreement Between NSD and Petaluma City 
Schools Regarding Interdistrict Attendance Agreement Vote: 3/0 Ayes: Rutledge, Sloane, 
Snell; Noes: None 

 
e. Consideration of New IDT Requests into NSD for 2017-18: 

i. IDT 17-18-15 
ii. IDT 17-18-18 

Discussion: Principal Snekkevik recommended approval of IDT #17-18-15 because there 
is capacity in the classroom based on Board policy, and there is now an IDT agreement 
in place between both districts. She recommended denial of IDT #17-18-18 based on the 
facts that 1) it would exceed program capacity in speech & language and resource, and 
2) there is false or misleading information on the application (parent state it is a 
“renewal” when in fact it is a new request). 
Action #1: M/S: Rutledge/Snell to approve IDT #17-18-15 into NSD for 2107-18. Vote: 
3/0 Ayes: Rutledge, Sloane, Snell; Noes: None 
 
Action #2: M/S: Rutledge/Snell to deny IDT #17-18-18 into NSD for 2017-18 Vote: 3/0 
Ayes: Rutledge, Sloane, Snell; Noes: None 

 
2. Conclusion 

a. Agenda Planning  
i. Approve LCAP 

16

16



ii. Adopt 2017-18 Budget 
iii. EPA Plan Approval 
iv. TAN Resolution 
v. Approve Superintendent Contract 

vi. Approval to Hire Spanish and/or PE Specialist 
 

b. Adjournment  
Action: M/S: Rutledge/Snell to adjourn meeting at 6:32pm Vote: 3/0 Ayes: Rutledge, 
Sloane, Snell; Noes: None  

 
 

 
 

Respectfully Submitted,  
 
Mikki McIntyre 
 
 
    
    Unadopted         Adopted        

________________________________________________ 
             Madeleine Sloane, Clerk 
 
 
 
 

 

17

17



NICASIO SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 
MINUTES 

 

~ SPECIAL MEETING ~ 
 

Tuesday, June 22, 2017    4pm   
 

Nicasio School Library   5555 Nicasio Valley Road, Nicasio CA 
and 

Michelle Rutledge via Skype/Phone:   
34-4725 Spearhead Drive Whistler, BC Canada  

 
1. Initial Matters 

a. Roll Call 
b. Call to Order at 4:05pm 
c. Roll Call In attendance: Trustees Madeleine Sloane, Jason Snell and (via teleconference) 

Michelle Rutledge. Also in attendance: Interim Superintendent Nancy Neu, Principal 
Barbara Snekkevik, Interim Chief Business Official Margie Bonardi and Office Manager 
Mikki McIntyre 

 
2. Open Session Agenda 

a. Patriotic Moment honoring the 4th of July in celebration of our nation’s independence 
and hoping for the future well being of this country  

b. Approval and Adoption of Open Session Agenda  
Action: M/S: Sloane/Rutledge to approve and adopt  Open Session Agenda Vote: 3/0 
Ayes: Rutledge, Sloane, Snell; Noes: None 

 
3. Public Comment  

a. Holly McArthur expressed her appreciation to Supt. Lohwasser for all of his service to 
Nicasio School and said all will miss him. Everyone in attendance seconded Holly’s 
comments.   

 
4. Business Services 

a. Approve 2017-18 Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) Discussion: Principal 
Snekkevik said minor corrections were made to typographical errors, but there were no 
substantive changes since the public hearing. She said the document has been 
submitted to MCOE with the budget. Margie Bonardi clarified that not all expenditures 
are in the LCAP, as not all funds are included in the document.  
Action: M/S: Sloane/Rutledge to approve 2017-18 LCAP Vote: 3/0 Ayes: Rutledge, 
Sloane, Snell; Noes: None 

 

18

18

office
Typewritten Text

office
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item 5aii.



b. Approve Adoption of 2017-18 Budget Discussion:  Margie said the budget was 
developed with the best assumptions available at the time and there are no anticipated 
revisions until later in the summer.  She added that the 2% increase in property taxes is 
a conservative assumption, but the rolls could possibly go higher this year. 
Action: M/S: Sloane/Rutledge to approve Adoption of 2017-18 Budget Vote: 3/0 Ayes: 
Rutledge, Sloane, Snell; Noes: None 

 
c. Approve 2017-18 Consolidated Application   

Action: M/S: Sloane/Rutledge to approve 2017-18 Consolidated Application Vote: 3/0 
Ayes: Rutledge, Sloane, Snell; Noes: None 

 
d. Consider Approval of Resolution 2016-17 #8 Tax Anticipation Note (TAN) Discussion: 

Supt. Lohwasser explained that most districts, especially those which are basic aid, pass 
this resolution so they can continue to meet their cash flow obligations until their tax 
revenues are received.  
Action: M/S: Sloane/Rutledge to approve Resolution 2016-17 #8 TAN ROLL CALL Vote: 
3/0 Ayes: Rutledge, Sloane, Snell; Noes: None 

 
e. Consider Approval of Resolution 2016-17 #9 Regarding the Education Protection 

Account (EPA) for 2017-18 Discussion: Margie explained that each year the district must 
report how much Prop. 30 funding it received and how those funds will be used.  The 
District will be spending the funds on the general category of education and not on 
administrative salaries, she noted.  
Action: M/S: Sloane/Rutledge to approve Resolution 2016-17 17 #9 Regarding the EPA 
for 2017-18 ROLL CALL Vote: 3/0 Ayes: Rutledge, Sloane, Snell; Noes: None 

 
f. Consider Approval of Resolution 2016-17 #10 Regarding Budget Transfer of Funds for 

Year End Closing  
Action: M/S: Sloane/Rutledge to approve Resolution 2016-17 #10 Regarding Budget 
Transfer of Funds for Year End Closing ROLL CALL Vote: 3/0 Ayes: Rutledge, Sloane, 
Snell; Noes: None 

 
g. Approve Marin County Aeries SIS Consortium 2017-18 Contract for Basic Aeries Hosting 

Services  
Action: M/S: Sloane/Rutledge to approve Marin County Aeries SIS Consortium 2017-18 
Contract for Basic Aeries Hosting Services Vote: 3/0 Ayes: Rutledge, Sloane, Snell; Noes: 
None 
 

h. Approve Con E Solutions 2017-18 Statement of Work  
Action: M/S: Sloane/Rutledge to approve Con E Solutions 2017-18 Statement of Work 
Vote: 3/0 Ayes: Rutledge, Sloane, Snell; Noes: None 
 
 

19

19



i. Approve Lozano Smith 2017-18 Agreement for Legal Services Discussion: Supt 
Lohwasser advised approval of the contract in case the need arises for an attorney 
specializing in personnel issues.  
Action: M/S: Sloane/Rutledge to approve Lozano Smith 2017-18 Agreement for Legal 
Services Vote: 3/0 Ayes: Rutledge, Sloane, Snell; Noes: None 
 

j. Approve Jerry and Don’s Pump & Well Service Agreement 2017-2018    
Action: M/S: Sloane/Rutledge to approve Jerry and Don’s Pump & Well Service 
Agreement 2017-2018 Vote: 3/0 Ayes: Rutledge, Sloane, Snell; Noes: None 

 
k. Quarterly Report on Williams Uniform Complaints     

i.  Oct-Dec 2016 
ii.  Apr-Jun 2017  

Action: M/S: Sloane/Rutledge to approve Quarterly Reports on Williams Uniform 
Complaints for Oct-Dec 2016 and Apr-Jun 2017 Vote: 3/0 Ayes: Rutledge, Sloane, Snell; 
Noes: None 

 
5. Administrative/Organizational 

a. Approve 2017-18 Nicasio School Board Schedule  
Action: M/S: Sloane/Rutledge to approve 2017-18 Nicasio School Board Schedule with 
the modification of changing the proposed Feb. 1, 2018 meeting date to Wednesday, 
January 31, 2018. Meeting time at 5pm. Vote: 3/0 Ayes: Rutledge, Sloane, Snell; Noes: 
None 

 
6. Personnel 

a. Approve Contract Services Agreement with Marin County Office of Education for      
2017-18 Support of Superintendent for Business Services   
Action: M/S: Sloane/Rutledge to approve Contract Services Agreement with MCOE for 
2017-18 Support of Superintendent for Business Services Vote: 3/0 Ayes: Rutledge, 
Sloane, Snell; Noes: None 

 
b. Approve Principal Contract for 2017-18   

Action: M/S: Sloane/Rutledge to approve Principal Contract for 2017-18 Vote: 3/0 Ayes: 
Rutledge, Sloane, Snell; Noes: None 

 
c. Approve Revised 2016-17 Classified Salary Schedule to Include Classification for Business 

Office Assistant Position Discussion:  Margie explained that Angelique Borges has 
resigned from the contract position with NSD because Bolinas-Stinson SD is hiring her 
fulltime. She said Angelique has offered to continue working for NSD as a special 
assignment until the position is filled. Margie noted that there is not currently anything 
on the salary schedule for that position. Trustee Snell expressed concerns about 
someone filling that position in a “moonlighting” capacity. Supt.; Lohwasser advised 
monitoring of the arrangement while keeping options open for other solutions. Margie 

20

20



said this is considered an open position and that the ideal would be to find someone 
dedicated to the position.  
Action: M/S: Rutledge/Sloane to approve Revised 2016-17 Classified Salary Schedule to 
Include Classification for Business Office Assistant Position Vote: 3/0 Ayes: Rutledge, 
Sloane, Snell; Noes: None 
 

d. Consider Approval for the Employment of an Extra Hire in the Business Office Assistant 
Position Discussion: See related discussion above (item 6c.). 
Action: M/S: Sloane/Rutledge to approve Approval for the Employment of an Extra Hire 
in the Business Office Assistant Position Vote: 3/0 Ayes: Rutledge, Sloane, Snell; Noes: 
None 

 
7. Facility  

a. Approve Jerry and Don’s Pump & Well Service Quote #5546 for Replacement of Drinking 
Water System Filter  
Action: M/S: Sloane/Rutledge to approve Jerry and Don’s Pump & Well Service Quote 
#5546 for Replacement of Drinking Water System Filter Vote: 3/0 Ayes: Rutledge, 
Sloane, Snell; Noes: None 

 
8. Other Business 

a. Supt. Lohwasser provided the following statement at the conclusion of his final NSD 
Board meeting prior to retirement:  

“I serve another school board and have served the Dixie School District for 27 
years, and I’d like to think I’ve made a positive mark there. I stepped into the 
position at Nicasio as a favor to (former) Superintendent Stephen Rosenthal. It 
has always been important to me that the school thrives, and I always look 
forward to coming out here. I am proud of the work we’ve done. There have 
been some serious personnel, community and budget issues we had to address, 
and it was a difficult transition losing (former principal) Christy (Stocker) – but 
we’ve gotten through it all, and I think we’re in pretty good shape. We have a 
great young principal who has a ton of potential and connections to ensure her 
success. She likes being here, and you can’t pay for that.  
 
“Nancy Neu (interim superintendent) is well known in Marin, especially for her 
roles with Novato, Tam and Shoreline school districts. She has a close 
relationship with (MCOE Superintendent) Mary Jane Burke, which is vital for this 
District. I think you will be in good hands.”  
 

b. Supt. Lohwasser also explained that technology specialist Kevin Ngyuen is helping to 
incorporate NSD into Dixie School District’s emergency call-out system, School 
Messenger. He said the system, at no cost to the District, will enable the school to notify 
families instantly and easily via phone, text or email in the event of an emergency.  

 

21

21



9. Correspondence  
a. Re: 2017-18 Interim Superintendent Services, Mary Jane Burke, Marin County 

Superintendent of Schools, June 14, 2017 
b. Re: Fee Schedule for 2017-18 Fiscal Year, Carl Corbin,  General Counsel, School & College 

Legal Services of CA, June 7, 2017  
 

10. Adjournment  
Action: M/S: Sloane/Snell to adjourn meeting. Vote: 3/0 Ayes: Rutledge, Sloane, Snell; 
Noes: None  

 
 
 
 

Respectfully Submitted,  
 
Mikki McIntyre 
 
 
    
    Unadopted         Adopted        

________________________________________________ 
             Madeleine Sloane, Clerk 

 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

22

22



23

23



24

24



25

25



26

26



27

27



28

28



29

29



30

30



31

31



32

32



33

33



34

34



35

35



36

36



37

37



38

38



39

39



page 1
2016-17 Unaudited Actuals

Budget Unaudited Actuals
1 2 3

2016-17 2016-17

 Difference 
/Estimated to 

Unaudited 
Estimated Actuals Unaudited Actuals

LCFF Sources 681,125                      686,261                     5,136                        
Federal Revenues 21,321                        21,345                       24                              
State Revenues 57,453                        58,937                       1,484                        
Local Revenues 273,822                      261,673                     (12,149)                    

-                            
Total Revenues 1,033,721                  1,028,216                 (5,505)                       
Certificated 239,994                      238,119                     (1,875)                       
Classified 163,362                      162,221                     (1,141)                       
Benefits 143,610                      136,771                     (6,839)                       
Supplies 43,071                        28,075                       (14,996)                    
Services 387,232                      370,667                     (16,565)                    
Capital Outlay 10,518                        10,518                       -                            
Transfers to Agencies 100,284                      94,141                      (6,143)                       
Total Expenditures 1,088,071                  1,040,512                 (47,559)                    
Net Change (54,350)                      (12,295)                      42,055                      
Beginning Fund Balance 445,138                      445,138                     -                            
Ending Fund Balance 390,787                      432,842                     42,055                      

Components of Ending Fund Balance 2016-17 2016-17
Estimated Actuals Unaudited Actuals

Restricted 49,336                        64,967                       
Reserved for Revolving Cash 1,000                          1,000                         
Economic Uncertainty 66,000                        66,000                       
Board Reserve for Uncertainty 135,219                      135,219                     
Board Reserve for Special Education 45,000                        45,000                       
Undesignated/Unappropriated 94,232                        116,199                     

390,787                      432,842                     

 
Economic Uncertainty - state required 6% 6%
Board reserve for uncertainty 12% 13% *
Board reserve for Special Education 4% 4%
Undesignated/Unappropriated 9% 11%

Total reserves available for uncertainty 31% 35%

40

40

office
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item 7a.



 

 

 

 

Nicasio School District 

5555 Nicasio Valley Road, Nicasio, CA 94946 

415.662.2184/415.662.2250

 

TO:  Nicasio School District Board of Trustees, 

  Nancy Neu, Superintendent 

FROM:  Margie Bonardi, Interim CBO 

DATE:  September 7, 2017 

SUBJECT: 2016-17  Unaudited Actuals 

 
This memo accompanies the SACS report of the unaudited actuals for 2016-17. The audited actuals are finalized 
after the auditors have completed the annual financial and compliance audit. The audit is in process at this time 
and will be completed by December and presented to the Board in January.   

REVENUE CHANGES 
Revenues decreased  overall by $ 5,505 over the Estimated Actuals budget: 
 

o LCFF Sources increased by $ 5,136 primarily due to an increase in final property tax receipts over budget. 
 

o Federal Revenue increased by $ 24;  Title III  EL Grant 
 

o Other State Revenue increased by $ 1,484  increased unrestricted and restricted Lottery revenue 
and Mandated Cost grant. 
 

o Other Local revenue decreased overall  by $ 12,149:  
Superintendent services provided in-kind by the Marin COE were left as a budget only entry, $ - 12,000. 
Special Ed AB602 county transfer of funds came in under budget by $ -3,253.   
  Parcel Tax came in over budget by $ 2,092 
Interest came in over budget $ 1,784. 
 

Contributions from the unrestricted general fund to support Special Education program decreased from 
$158,428 to $135,339, an overall savings of $23,089 over the Estimated Actuals budget: 
 

o The budget included $ 5,000 due to MCOE for LCFF revenue entitlement for pupils educated in MCOE 
classes, however there was no amount due with the final billing.  

o  Expenditures for Counseling Services were paid through State and  Federal Mental Health funding which 
wasn't included in budgeted expenses, 1 to 1 aide services (BACR) and MCOE Speech/Autism costs were 
lower than budgeted; total savings $ 18,317. 

 
 

41

41



 
 
 
EXPENDITURE CHANGES 
 
Expenditures decreased overall by $ 47,559 compared to the Estimated Actuals budget: 
 

o Certificated salaries closed $1,875 under budget primarily due to reduced substitute services. Classified 
salaries closed $ 1,141 under budget due primarily to reducted extra office and aide sub time. Benefits 
closed the year $ 6,839 under budget distributed among all benefit sources.   
 

o Materials and supplies were approximately $ 14,996 under budget in the general fund due to a delay in 
text-book adoption purchases, unspent general supply account activity and restricted account supply 
resources.  These restricted resources will carry over into the new year and will be available for 
expenditure. 
 

o Services and other operating expenditures decreased $ 32,565: 
 
 decrease/savings on expenses for  the In-Kind cost of Superintendent services provided through MCOE of 
$ 12,000,  decrease in cost for conference and travel $ 1,706, decrease in Special Ed Service contracts for 
counseling, MCOE Speech/Autism class, and case management (BACR), Bond fees and assorted 
maintenance contracts totaling $ 31,907.  
 
increased expenses for water testing and sewer charges $3 818, Legal services, $ 2,634, MCOE services for 
Principal and Business Office personnel $ 27,274. 
 

o Other outgo in the unrestricted general fund represents the budget for the STRS Golden Handshake 
offered three years ago and closed $1,419 over budget 

o Savings were realized at  $ 5,000 under budget which was caused by a decrease in the ADA transfer 
amount for special education to the County Office;  plus MCOE's costs to provide Special Ed Services 
(Excess Cost) for Nicasio students came in $ 2,025 under budgt. 
 

 Carryover to the 2017-18 Budget 
At June 30, 2017 the district’s restricted programs have carryover amounts to add to the 2017-18 Budget as 
follows: 

 
 Federal REAP grant       $  1,109 
 Prop 39 Energy grant      $  1,350 
 Educator Effectiveness     $  5,866 
 Lottery Instructional materials    $  1,566 
 Special Ed:  Mental Health Services    $     949 
 Foundation funds to carry over    $  3,489 
 Student funds      $   4,473 
 Parcel Taxes      $ 45,192 
 Garden Grant      $      971 

 

42

42



SACS REPORTS – REQUIRED REPORTING FORMAT PRESCRIBED BY THE STATE SUPERINTENDENT 

There are several reports included in the unaudited actuals. The following information is a summary of each 
report. The reports reflect both unaudited actuals for 2016-17 and the adopted budget for 2017-18. 

o General Fund (Form 01)– the District’s operating fund 
o Deferred Maintenance Fund (Form 14)– is supported with an annual transfer from the General Fund 
o Bond Interest and Redemption Fund (Form 51) - is maintained by the County auditor to service the 

District’s general obligation bond debt service 
 

o Other Forms: 
o Average Daily Attendance (Form A) 

The third column, Funded ADA, represents the ADA used for calculating the LCFF. 
 

o Schedule of Capital Assets (Form ASSET) 
This form summarizes the assets and depreciation of the district which includes land, buildings, 
and equipment. 
 

o Current Expense Formula/Minimum Classroom Compensation (Form CEA) 
Nicasio School District is exempt from the required classroom compensation because of its small 
class sizes. 
 

o Schedule of Long Term Debt (Form DEBT) 
This form summarizes the district’s long-term liabilities which consist of general obligation bonds 
and the Golden Handshake Early Retirement Incentive program entered into last fiscal year. 
 

o School District Appropriations Limit Calculation (Form GANN) 
The Gann calculation is the result of Prop 4 from 1979. The intent was to limit growth in 
government spending so that spending could grow no faster than the growth in population and 
inflation. If an agency exceeds their Gann limit, a resolution is required to increase their limit. The 
limit is placed on the state as a whole not on each agency (city, county, school district). You will 
find a resolution to increase the Gann limit on the agenda. 
 

o Indirect Cost Rate Worksheet (Form ICR) 
This form calculates the indirect cost rate that the district may apply to certain categorical 
programs to offset administrative costs. 
 

o Lottery Report (Form L) 
This report summarizes the expenditure of Lottery funds both unrestricted and restricted. Funds 
restricted by Prop 20 may only be spent on instructional materials.  The report indicates the Prop 
20 funds were expended as required. 
 

o No Child Left Behind Maintenance of Effort (Form NCMOE) 
NCLB requires that the district maintain a per capita level of expenditures from year to year. If the 
maintenance of effort is not met, there are financial consequences.  The NCLB maintenance of 
effort was met. 
 

43

43



o Program Cost Report (Form PCRAF) 
Expenditures include a “goal” that indicates how to distribute the expenditure to the pupils being 
served – regular education vs special education for example. This form provides the allocation 
factors used to distribute expenditures that have been coded to an undistributed goal because 
the cost serves all pupil groups. 
 

o Program Cost Report (Form PCR) 
This report distributes all expenditures utilizing the goal attached to each expenditure and the 
information in the PCRAF. 
 

o Summary of Interfund Activities (Form SIAA) 
This form summarizes interfund activity. The transfer to the Deferred Maintenance Fund is no 
longer reported in this form as it is recorded as a transfer of LCFF sources. 

 

After the SACS report has been accepted by the Board, it is forwarded to MCOE for additional review and 
verification before being sent to the State. 

Please do not hesitate to contact me at (415) 720-0367 should you have any questions or concerns. 

44

44



45

45

office
Typewritten Text

office
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item 7ai.

office
Typewritten Text
xxx

office
Typewritten Text
xxx

office
Typewritten Text
x

office
Typewritten Text
x

office
Typewritten Text
x

office
Typewritten Text
x

office
Typewritten Text
x

office
Typewritten Text
x

office
Typewritten Text
x

office
Typewritten Text
x

office
Typewritten Text



46

46



47

47



48

48



49

49



50

50



51

51



52

52



53

53



54

54



55

55



56

56



57

57



58

58



59

59



60

60



61

61



62

62



63

63



64

64



65

65



66

66



67

67



68

68



69

69



70

70



71

71



72

72



73

73



74

74



75

75



76

76



77

77



78

78



79

79



80

80



81

81



82

82



83

83



84

84



85

85



86

86



87

87



88

88

office
Typewritten Text



89

89

office
Sticky Note



90

90



91

91



92

92



93

93



94

94



95

95



96

96



97

97



98

98



99

99



100

100



101

101



102

102



103

103



104

104



105

105



106

106



107

107



108

108



109

109



110

110



NICASIO SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Nicasio, California 

 
(Education Code Section 60119) 

 
Resolution 2017-18 #2 

 
REGARDING SUFFICIENCY OR INSUFFICIENCY OF 

INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS 
 
  

Whereas, the governing board of Nicasio School District, in order to comply with the requirements 
of Education Code Section 60119 held a public hearing on Thursday, September 7, 2017 at 5 PM, 
which is on or before the eighth week of school and which did not take place during or immediately 
following school hours, and; 
 
Whereas, the governing board provided at least 10 days notice of the public hearing posted in at 
least three public places within the district that stated the time, place, and purpose of the hearing, 
and; 
 
Whereas, the governing board encouraged participation by parents, teachers, members of the 
community, and bargaining unit leaders in the public hearing, and; 
 
Whereas, information provided at the public hearing and to the governing board at the public 
meeting detailed the extent to which textbooks and instructional materials were provided to all 
students in the District, including English learners, in the district/county office of education, and; 
 
Whereas, the definition of “sufficient textbooks or instructional materials” means that each pupil has 
a textbook or instructional materials, or both, to use in class and to take home, and; 
 
Whereas, sufficient textbooks and instructional materials were provided to each student, including 
English learners, which are aligned to the academic content standards and consistent with the 
cycles and content of the curriculum frameworks in the following subjects: 
 

• Mathematics  
  K-5   My Math - McGraw Hill, (c) 2014  
   6-8    California Mathematics (Course 1, 2, 3) Glencoe/McGraw-Hill (c) 2015    
 

Adopted for implementation at the start of the 2014-15 school year. Approved by 
the State Department of Education for adoption in California Public Schools. 
Aligned to Common Core standards. 

 
 Science 

  K-5   Full Option Science System (FOSS) for Elementary, Delta Education (c) 2007 
6-8    Cambridge Physics Outlet (CPO) Science Program, Delta Education (c) 2007  
 

111

111

office
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item 7e.



Adopted for implementation at the start of the 2008-09 school year. On Sept. 
4, 2013, the State Board of Education (SBE) adopted the Next Generation 
Science Standards for California Public Schools, Kindergarten-Grade 12. This 
list of SBE-approved K-8 science instructional materials for adoption is 
anticipated in 2017-18. 

 
• History-Social Science    

  K-5   Scott Foresman (c) 2006 
  6-8    Teachers Curriculum Institute (TCI) - History Alive! (c) 2004 
 

Adopted for implementation at the start of the 2004-05 school year. The District has 
opted not to adopt a later edition at this time. Textbooks in use are aligned to 
Content Standards for California Public Schools, which is still relevant. Available 
funds for textbook adoption are being applied toward Common Core materials in 
math and language arts to esdure alignment with new state standards in these two 
subject areas.  

 
• Reading 

K-5 Reading Wonders (Literature Anthology, Reading/Writing Workshop, Close 
Reading Companion), McGraw Hill – Reading Wonders (c) 2017 
 
Approved for piloting materials at the start of the 2014-15 school year. Adopted for 
implementation at the start of the 2017-18 school year. 

  
  6-8 Literature-based Thematic Units Aligned to Common Core, District-Developed 
   

Approved for implementation at the start of the 2006-07 school year with alignments 
to Content Standards for California Public Schools. Effective at the start of 2014-15, 
units are aligned to Common Core Standards. 

 
 

• Writing 
K-5 Units of Study in Opinion, Information and Narrative Writing by Lucy Calkins, 
Heinemann, (c) 2014 
 6-8 Units of Study in Argument, Information, and Narrative Writing by Lucy Calkins, 
Heinemann, (c) 2014 
 
Approved for a pilot test for implementation at the start of the 2014-15 school year. 
 

  
Therefore, it is resolved that for the 2017-18 school year, the Nicasio School District has provided 
each pupil with sufficient textbooks and instructional materials aligned to the academic content 
standards and consistent with the cycles and content of the curriculum frameworks. 
 
 
 

112

112



 
 
Passed by the following vote: 
 
Ayes: 
 
Nayes: 
 
Date: 
 
 
 
Signed by the Clerk of the Board: __________________________________________ 
 

113

113



114

114



115

115



116

116



117

117



118

118



119

119



120

120



121

121



122

122



123

123



124

124



125

125



126

126



127

127



128

128



129

129



130

130



131

131



132

132



133

133



134

134



135

135



136

136



137

137



138

138



139

139



140

140



141

141



142

142



143

143



144

144



145

145

office
Typewritten Text



Page 1 of 97

LCAP Year 2017–18 2018–19 2019–20

Local Control 
Accountability Plan 
and Annual Update 
(LCAP) Template

Addendum: General instructions & regulatory requirements. 

Appendix A: Priorities 5 and 6 Rate Calculations

Appendix B: Guiding Questions: Use as prompts (not limits)

LCFF Evaluation Rubrics: Essential data to support completion of this 
LCAP. Please analyze the LEA’s full data set; specific links to the 
rubrics are also provided within the template.

LEA Name Nicasio School District

----------Contact Name and
Title

Barbara Snekkevik
Principal

Email and 
Phone

bsnekkevik@nicasioschool.org
415.662.2184

2017-20 Plan Summary
THE STORY
Briefly describe the students and community and how the LEA serves them.

Nicasio School is committed to providing a high quality, engaging, and well-rounded educational experience in an 
environment where all students feel supported and experience success. Nestled in the heart of Marin County, California, 
Nicasio School is one of the few remaining single-school public school districts in Marin. The rural district itself was 
established in 1862 with the first Nicasio schoolhouse constructed in 1867. Nicasio School has changed dramatically 
since the late 1800s. Thanks to voters supporting a $2.4 million bond in 1999, today's campus is comprised of modern, 
state-of-the-art facilities. In addition to large classrooms, students at Nicasio School have access to the school's library, 
art room, up-to-date technology, and a multi-purpose room equipped with a stage and full kitchen. Having the advantage 
of a rural environment, students also enjoy working in the school's organic garden with support from their teachers along 
with parent and community

VISION STATEMENT
Nicasio School prepares students to excel in high school and in life by attracting and maintaining outstanding teachers 
who deliver a stimulating curriculum through innovative instructional methods. Working with parents and the community, 
we support all students in reaching their full potential academically, physically, and emotionally by providing a safe and 
nurturing environment.

MISSION STATEMENT
Benefiting from its unique rural setting, strong sense of community and distinguished history, Nicasio School will educate 
children to value learning, act with integrity, live a healthful life, and participate as responsible citizens both globally and 
locally.

During the 2016-17 school year, Nicasio School served 44 students in grades TK-8. Approximately 20% of the student 
body represented the local Hispanic community. The majority of these students entered Nicasio School in primary 
grades as English Language Learners (ELL) with their primary language being Spanish. By the time our ELL students 
reach upper elementary school or early middle school, the majority are reclassified as Fluent English Proficient. 
Approximately 18% of Nicasio School's students received special education support and services.

Students learn in multi-grade classrooms with highly skilled teachers and support staff who prepare them for transition to 
high school and life outside of Nicasio. While many graduating 8th graders attend Sir Francis Drake High School in San 
Anselmo, many others attend private high schools in Marin County and San Francisco.

146

146

https://www.caschooldashboard.org/#/Details/21654096024483/1/EquityReport


Page 2 of 97

During the 2016-17 school year, there were several changes in administrative personnel. Due to a principal vacancy, two 
interim principals were contracted until the vacancy was filled in late February 2017. Our Chief Business Officer left the 
position in September 2016. A CBO was then contracted through the Marin County Office of Education for the remainder 
of the school year.

        

LCAP HIGHLIGHTS 
Identify and briefly summarize the key features of this year’s LCAP.

After a thorough review by all stakeholder groups, the majority of actions/services designated in the 2016-17 LCAP were 
completed with positive result.

For the 2017-18 school year, Goal 2 has been removed and the corresponding actions have been transferred to the goal 
that states "Prepare all students to transition successfully to high school both academically and socially." (formerly Goal 
3). No actions/services have been removed from the previous year's LCAP. Due to the removal of Goal 2, the remaining 
goals have shifted in order to be numerically accurate. The goals for the 2017-18 school year are:

Goal 1: Identify, attract, and retain outstanding staff
Goal 2: Prepare all students to transition successfully to high school both academically and socially
Goal 3: Ensure all parents are active participants in the school community
Goal 4: Ensure all facilities are up-to-date, functional and safe

The following actions/services have been added:

Goal 2 (Action 2.3) Implement a Student Study Team to discuss and monitor progress of at-risk students.
Goal 2 (Action 2.10) Outreach to the local preschools to identify potential incoming students.
Goal 2 (Action 2.13)  The district will investigate and pilot a school-wide social emotional learning program to support 
student interaction and enhance student engagement.

        

REVIEW OF PERFORMANCE 

Based on a review of performance on the state indicators and local performance indicators included in the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubrics, progress toward LCAP goals, local self-assessment tools, stakeholder input, or other information, 
what progress is the LEA most proud of and how does the LEA plan to maintain or build upon that success?  This may 
include identifying any specific examples of how past increases or improvements in services for low-income students, 
English learners, and foster youth have led to improved performance for these students.

GREATEST 
PROGRESS

During the 2016-17 school year, Nicasio school continued to attract and retain outstanding staff. 
Successful negotiations with the Nicasio Teachers Union resulted in a 2% salary increase for all 
certificated and classified staff. This is an important step in providing competitive salary and benefits to our 
teachers as compared to schools with similar student population size.

Nicasio school continued to maintain optimal class sizes and configurations to enhance learning and social 
interactions based on student enrollment in 3 multi-age classrooms. A .60 FTE principal was hired in 
February 2017 to fill a vacancy since August 2016. The inter-district transfer policy was reviewed and 
reaffirmed by the school board in March 2017 to ensure students have access to same-aged peers, while 
maintaining a small learning environment. All three classrooms received consistent support from a 
classroom aide during the school day.

Students continued to receive a broad course of study, including enrichment programs in grades K-8 
(Spanish, Art, Performing Arts, PE).

147

147



Page 3 of 97

English learners continued to receive targeted academic language support from their classroom teacher 
through the Learning Center. During the 2016-17 school year, 7 students were designated as English 
Learners. According to annual CELDT results, 3 students (50%) increased performance by one or more 
level. 3 students (50%) had either no change or decreased by one performance level. 1 student was 
administered an initial assessment and therefore had no prior results with which to compare growth. In 
spring 2017, one student was redesignated as Fluent English Proficient.

Results from the annual school survey (April 2017) indicate that students in grades 5-8 have a positive 
perception of both classroom and school climate. The classroom climate is rated as positive by 96% of the 
students. The school climate is rated as positive by 78% of students ("you enjoy coming to school") and 
safe by 100% of students ("you feel safe at school"). 78% of students responded having a positive 
relationship with teachers and staff ("you feel comfortable approaching teachers and staff with questions, 
problems, and concerns.")

A total of 42 parents participated in the school survey (from our 33 families total). Of this year’s 42 
participants, 8 (19%) were from Spanish-speaking households, which is a close representation of the 
overall percentage of Spanish-speaking households school-wide (21%). 90 % of parents agree that 
communication between the school office and home is sufficient.

Regular, consistent and clear communication between school and home was maintained via weekly 
updates to the Parent Portal in both English and Spanish. Translation services are provided to 100% of 
Spanish-speaking households, both orally and in writing. Student reports, school documents and forms, 
and school news are provided in both English and Spanish.

School grounds continue to be clean and safe. An effective communication system is maintained between 
school and custodial staff. The site maintains "exemplary" status on the Facility Inspection Tool (FIT).

Referring to the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, identify any state indicator or local performance indicator for which overall 
performance was in the “Red” or “Orange” performance category or where the LEA received a “Not Met” or “Not Met for 
Two or More Years” rating. Additionally, identify any areas that the LEA has determined need significant improvement 
based on review of local performance indicators or other local indicators. What steps is the LEA planning to take to 
address these areas with the greatest need for improvement?

GREATEST 
NEEDS

Based on the Spring 2016 results for the California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress 
(CAASPP), Nicasio student scores for grades 3-8 indicate a significant decline for both English Language 
Arts (-16 points) and Mathematics (-18.4 points). It is noted, however, that the status of scores for English 
Language Arts is "very high" (46.7 points above level 3) and for Mathematics is "high" (11.6 points above 
level 3). Due to our small student population, a decline in a small sample of student performances can 
result in a significant decline in the overall school performance results.

We will continue to address this concern by offering high-quality, standards-aligned curriculum, textbooks 
and materials to students. Classroom teachers will use on-going formative assessments to monitor student 
progress during the school year. School staff will formalize a Study Study Team (SST) process by which 
teachers and parents can discuss concerns about student progress and create plans to ensure all students 
will flourish both academically and socially.

During the 2016-17 school year, 7 students were designated as English Learners. According to annual 
CELDT results, 3 students (50%) increased performance by one or more level. 3 students (50%) had either 
no change or decreased by one performance level. 1 student was administered an initial assessment and 
therefore had no prior results with which to compare growth. In spring 2017, one student was redesignated 
as Fluent English Proficient.

We will continue to address the growth and language development of English Learners by offering 
designated English language support through our Learning Center Program. We will monitor all students 
during the school year and use a formalized Study Study Team (SST) process by which teachers and 
parents can discuss concerns about student progress and create plans to ensure all students will flourish 
both academically and socially. (Goal 2, Action 2.3)

Results from the annual school survey (April 2017) indicate that students in grades 5-8 have an overall 
positive perception of both classroom and school climate. The classroom climate is rated as positive by 
96% of the students. The school climate is rated as positive by 78% of students ("you enjoy coming to 
school") and safe by 100% of students ("you feel safe at school"). 78% of students responded having a 
positive relationship with teachers and staff ("you feel comfortable approaching teachers and staff with 
questions, problems, and concerns.")

148

148



Page 4 of 97

We will continue to address student connectedness and overall positive school climate by investigating and 
piloting a school-wide social emotional program to support student interaction and enhance student 
engagement. (Goal 2, Action 2.13)

149

149



Page 5 of 97

Referring to the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, identify any state indicator for which performance for any student group was 
two or more performance levels below the “all student” performance. What steps is the LEA planning to take to address 
these performance gaps?

PERFORMANCE 
GAPS

No student group was two or more performance levels below the "all student" performance.

INCREASED OR IMPROVED SERVICES
If not previously addressed, identify the two to three most significant ways that the LEA will increase or improve services 
for low-income students, English learners, and foster youth.
The district will continue to provide targeted English language instruction and support to English Learners through the Learning Center 
program. (Goal 2, Action 2.7)

The district will continue to provide communication (oral and written) and school documents/forms to families in Spanish via an 
interpreter, as needed. (Goal 3, Action 3.4)

The district will provide scholarships to low-income and foster youth for school programs, such as field trips. (Goal 2, Action 2.6)

The district will investigate and pilot a school-wide social emotional program to provide a safe and caring school climate for all student 
groups. (Goal 2, Action 2.13)

The district will implement a formal Student Study Team to identify and monitor at-risk students, including English Learners, Foster 
Youth, and Low-Income students. (Goal 2, Action 2.3)
        

BUDGET SUMMARY
Complete the table below. LEAs may include additional information or more detail, including graphics.

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

Total General Fund Budget Expenditures for LCAP Year $ 1,084,128.00

----------Total Funds Budgeted for Planned Actions/Services to 
Meet the Goals in the LCAP for LCAP Year

$1,142,223.00

The LCAP is intended to be a comprehensive planning tool but may not describe all General Fund Budget Expenditures.  
Briefly describe any of the General Fund Budget Expenditures specified above for the LCAP year not included in the 
LCAP.

        

$694,871 Total Projected LCFF Revenues for LCAP Year

150

150



Page 7 of 97

Annual Update LCAP Year Reviewed:   2016-17

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Goal
1

Identify, attract, and retain outstanding staff       

----------State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
COE       9 10
LOCAL   

ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

EXPECTED ACTUAL

a) All students will receive instruction from highly qualified teachers, 
100% of whom will be appropriately assigned and credentialed.

b) Salaries for certificated teachers and for classified staff will remain 
competitive with comparable school districts in Marin County.

c) Student attendance rate will be at least 95% as a result of pupil 
engagement.

Metric(s): P-2 Attendance Report, Teacher Misassignment, Employee 
Longevity List, Credential Monitoring Report , CTA Comparisons of 
Salaries - Marin, School Accountability Report Card (Teacher 
Credentials; Teacher Misassignments; Highly Qualified Teachers)
      

a) All students received instruction from highly qualified teachers, 100% of whom 
were appropriately assigned and credentialed.

b) Salaries for certificated and classified staff remain competitive with comparable 
school districts in Marin County.

c) Student attendance rate is  97% (as of P2 reporting date)
      

ACTIONS / SERVICES

Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed.

startcollapse

Action    1

151

151



Page 8 of 97

Actions/Services
PLANNED
1.1 Review Credential Monitoring Report provided by Marin 
County Office of Education. Communicate with teachers as 
needed to ensure that all credentials are current.       

ACTUAL
1.1 All teachers hold appropriate credentials as reported in 
Credential Monitoring Reported dated 3/3/17.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Costs included in Goal 2, Action #1, School Site Administration    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Costs included in Goal 2, Action #1, School Site Administration   

Action    2
Actions/Services

PLANNED
1.2 Participate in labor negotiations with teachers and work to 
develop a fair and competitive agreement and salary schedule.       

ACTUAL
1.2 Labor negotiations occurred December 2016. Updated 
salary schedule was approved by school board February 
2017.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Costs included in Goal 2, Action #1, CBO Salary and Superintendent 
Services    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Costs included in Goal 2, Action #1, CBO Salary and Superintendent 
Services   

Action    3
Actions/Services

PLANNED
1.3 Pay certificated teachers a competitive salary and provide 
competitive health and welfare benefits.       

ACTUAL
1.3 Labor negotiations occurred December 2016. Updated 
salary schedule was approved by school board February 
2017 with retroactive 2% increase for all certificated and 
classified staff.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Costs included in Goal 2, Action #3 Teacher Salaries and Benefits    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Costs included in Goal 2, Action #3,  Teacher Salaries and Benefits   

Action    4
Actions/Services

PLANNED
1.4 Provide comparable salary increases for classified staff 
based on the outcome of negotiations for certificated teachers.       

ACTUAL
1.4 Labor negotiations occurred December 2016. Updated 
salary schedule was approved by school board February 
2017 with retroactive 2% increase for all certificated and 
classified staff.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Costs for classified staff are included at: CBO & Office Mgr. - Goal 2, Action 
#1 Instructional Aide - Goal 4 - Action #5 Custodian - Goal 7 - Action #2 
Professional Experts - Goal 2 - Action #5 & Goal 6 - Action #3    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Costs for classified staff are included at:  CBO & Office Mgr.  - Goal 2, 
Action #1 Instructional Aide - Goal 4 - Action #5 Custodian - Goal 7 - Action 
#2 Professional Experts - Goal 2 - Action #5 & Goal 6 - Action #3   

152

152



Page 9 of 97

ANALYSIS
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Use actual annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.

Describe the overall implementation of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal.

The district continued to identify, attract and retain highly qualified staff for the 2016-17 school year. The 
quarterly credential monitoring report was reviewed throughout the school year as it was provided to the 
district by MCOE. The Nicasio Teachers Association (NTA), representing certificated teachers, negotiated 
with the district in December 2016. The result of these negotiations was a retroactive 2% pay increase for 
all certificated and classified staff, approved by the Nicasio School Board in February 2017.

--------Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services 
to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA.

The quarterly credential monitoring report was reviewed throughout the school year as it was provided to 
the district by MCOE. The Nicasio Teachers Association (NTA), representing certificated teachers, 
negotiated with the district in December 2016. The result of these negotiations was a retroactive 2% pay 
increase for all certificated and classified staff, approved by the Nicasio School Board in February 
2017.These actions proved effective in achieving our goal to identify, attract and retain highly qualified staff 
for the 2016-17 school year.

--------Explain material differences between Budgeted 
Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.

There were no material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.

--------Describe any changes made to this goal, expected 
outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those 
changes can be found in the LCAP.

This goal will continue. Action 1.2 (Participate in labor negotiations with teachers and work to develop a fair 
and competitive agreement and salary schedule) will be removed  as it is a component of Action 1.3. For 
2017-18, Action 1.2 will read "Maintain a competitive salary schedule and provide competitive health and 
welfare benefits as a result of labor negotiations."  Labor negotiations with the Nicasio Teachers 
Association (NTA) will occur Spring 2018.

153

153



Page 10 of 97

Annual Update LCAP Year Reviewed:   2016-17

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Goal
2

Maintain optimal class sizes and configurations to enhance learning and social interactions       

----------State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
COE       9 10
LOCAL   

ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

EXPECTED ACTUAL

a) Students will benefit by having a group of peers in their respective 
grade level with whom to learn, interact, and play, which will promote 
student engagement. Class sizes will average 15-20 students in 
grades TK-5 and up to 25 in grades 6-8 based on 3.0 FTE certificated 
teachers with an average total enrollment of 50 students.

b) There will be a zero (0) dropout rate. Suspensions and expulsions 
will be statistically insignificant.

c) As a result of pupil engagement, students and parents will report an 
average of 90% satisfaction with overall classroom and campus 
climate. Attendance rate will average 95%. There will be a zero (0) 
dropout rate. Suspensions and expulsions will be statistically 
insignificant.

Metric(s): School Attendance Rates, Chronic Absenteeism Rate, 
Dropout Rate (Middle School drop out rate), Suspension Rate, 
Expulsion Rate, Enrollment Roster, Inter-District Requests/Waitlist
      

a) Enrollment during the 2016-17 school year included a total of 44 students: 13 
students (K/1/2), 15 students (3/4/5) and 16 students (6/7/8). Each grade level 
consisted of 3 to 7 students with the exception of Kindergarten, which only had 1 
student. A total of 14 students continued to attend Nicasio school on renewed inter-
district transfer agreements. No new inter-district transfer agreements were approved 
for 2016-17.

Class sizes in 2016-17 remained within the average range expected for enrollment. 
Grades K-8 were supported by 3 full-time certificated teachers.

b) There was a zero (0) dropout rate. There were zero (0) suspensions and 
expulsions. Attendance rate was 97% as measured by P2 report (March 2017). The 
Chronic Absenteeism Rate was zero (0).

c) Results from the annual school survey (April 2017) indicate that students in grades 
5-8 have a positive perception of both classroom and school climate. The classroom 
climate is rated as positive by 96% of the students. The school climate is rated as 
positive by 78% of students ("you enjoy coming to school") and safe by 100% of 
students ("you feel safe at school"). 78% of students responded having a positive 
relationship with teachers and staff ("you feel comfortable approaching teachers and 
staff with questions, problems, and concerns.")

On the annual parent survey (April 2017), 90% of parents report their child(ren) 
enjoy(s) coming to school. 95% of parents feel welcome and encouraged to 
participate in school events and activities.

154

154



Page 11 of 97

      

ACTIONS / SERVICES

Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed.

startcollapse

Action    1
Actions/Services

PLANNED
2.1 Maintain current configuration for school administration: 
.60 FTE principal; .80 FTE office manager; 11 days/year 
superintendent;
.40 FTE chief business official; .40 FTE accounting assistant; 
maintain office phone & internet communications and student 
information systems (SIS)
       

ACTUAL
2.1 Current configuration for school administration was 
maintained: .60 FTE principal; .80 FTE office manager; 11 
days/year superintendent; .40 FTE chief business official; .40 
FTE accounting assistant.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Admin/business salaries   LCFF $224,167 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Admin/business salaries 0000: Unrestricted LCFF 217,408

 3000-3999: Employee Benefits LCFF $37,350  3000-3999: Employee Benefits LCFF 22,761.49
Supt Services   LCFF $7,984 Supt Services  LCFF 12,000
 4000-4999: Books And Supplies LCFF $4,725  4000-4999: Books And Supplies LCFF 1899
Phone  4000-4999: Books And Supplies LCFF $4,100 Phone/Information Systems 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 

Expenditures LCFF 7,283.
Services SIS   LCFF $8,427 Services SIS  LCFF 10,563

Action    2
Actions/Services

PLANNED
2.2 Update and maintain enrollment projections. Outreach to 
parents and community members to identify potential incoming 
students. Review the inter-district transfer policy and 
determine the future of renewal requests as well as new 
requests within the context of fostering a stimulating learning 
environment for resident students while also balancing the 
budget.       

ACTUAL
2.2 Enrollment projection for the 2016-17 school year were 
maintained and continuously updated during the Spring 2016. 
Actual enrollment at the start of the school year was 43 
students. One 8th grade student enrolled mid-year, 
increasing the total enrollment to 44 students.

Inter-district transfer policy was reviewed by the school board 
in March 2017. It was decided to continue current policy for 
the 2017-18 school year.

155

155



Page 12 of 97

16 Inter-district transfer requests for the 2017-18 school year 
were approved by the school board in May 2017.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Costs included in school administration – (Goal 2) Action #1    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Costs included in school administration - (Goal 2) Action #1   

Action    3
Actions/Services

PLANNED
2.3 Support multi-grade classrooms with 3.0 FTE teachers. 
Each of the three homeroom teachers (3.0 FTE) will support 
three grade levels. During core instruction of math and 
language arts, a part-time classroom aide will provide 
additional support as needed.       

ACTUAL
2.3 Three full-time teachers were employed for three multi-
grade classrooms: K-2, 3-5, and 6-8. A classroom aide 
provided additional support in all three classrooms on a 
regular schedule during instructional time.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
3.0 FTE Teacher salaries    $253,226 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
3.0 FTE Teacher Salaries  1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Other 210,045

 3000-3999: Employee Benefits  $74,747  3000-3999: Employee Benefits Other 53,777
$157,050  LCFF  153,721 0000: Unrestricted LCFF 153,721
Parcel Taxes    $169,923 Parcel Taxes   110,101
Foundation    $1,000    

Action    4
Actions/Services

PLANNED
2.4 Provide an instructional aide to support all pupils in grades 
K-8 as needed within the three homerooms.       

ACTUAL
2.4 A classroom aide provided additional support daily in all 
three classrooms on a regular schedule during instructional 
time.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Costs included in Goal 3 Action #7    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Costs included in Goal 3 Action #7   

Action    5
Actions/Services

PLANNED
2.5 Enhance student learning by providing a broad course of 
study beyond state required subject areas and by providing 
teachers with sufficient planning periods to prepare for 
instruction in multi-grade, self-contained classrooms. Offer 
enrichment programs to students in grades TK-8: Spanish, Art, 
Performing Arts and PE Specialist.

ACTUAL
2.5 For the 2016-17 school year, the Nicasio School 
Foundation provided funding to ensure the district could 
provide K-8 students with courses in Spanish, Art, Performing 
Arts, and a specialist for PE. These courses provided an 
enriched learning experience for students outside of the 
mandated curriculum while providing sufficient planning 
periods for full-time classroom teachers.

156

156



Page 13 of 97

Using unspent funds donated in 2015-16, purchase a new kiln 
for the art program in 2016-17.

       

A new kiln was purchased and installed in February 2017.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries  $34,308 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries  33,769

 3000-3999: Employee Benefits  $3,505  3000-3999: Employee Benefits  6,709
 4000-4999: Books And Supplies  $4,011 New Kiln with carry over funds 4000-4999: Books And Supplies  2,923
Local Foundation Donation   $41,824 Local Foundation Donation   43,401

ANALYSIS
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Use actual annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.

Describe the overall implementation of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal.

During the 2016-17 school year, optimal class sizes and configurations were maintained to enhance 
learning a social interactions. School administration configuration was maintained. Three full-time teachers 
were employed for three multi-grade classrooms. An instructional assistant provided support in each of the 
three classrooms durning instructional time. For the 2016-17 school year, the Nicasio School Foundation 
provided funding to ensure the district could provide K-8 students with courses in Spanish, Art, Performing 
Arts, and a specialist for PE. These courses provided an enriched learning experience for students outside 
of the mandated curriculum while providing sufficient planning periods for full-time classroom teachers.

--------Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services 
to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA.

Class sizes in 2016-17 remained within the average range expected for enrollment. Grades K-8 were 
supported by 3 full-time certificated teachers.

There was a zero (0) dropout rate. There were zero (0) suspensions and expulsions. Attendance rate was 
97% as measured by P2 report (March 2017).

Results from the annual school survey (April 2017) indicate that students in grades 5-8 have a positive 
perception of both classroom and school climate. The classroom climate is rated as positive by 96% of the 
students. The school climate is rated as positive by 78% of students and safe by 100% of students.

On the annual parent survey (April 2017), 90% of parents report their child(ren) enjoy(s) coming to school. 
95% of parents feel welcome and encouraged to participate in school events and activities.

--------

157

157



Page 14 of 97

Explain material differences between Budgeted 
Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.

The original budgeted expenditures differed materially from estimated actuals in these two categories;   
Administrative Salaries
The prior's year's principal resigned at the end of the 2015-16 school year.  When the district could not find 
a candidate for the position, they contracted with the Marin County Office of Education for temporary 
contract coverage.  In February, the district hired a new principal for a .25 FTE  assignment to year's end. 
Savings were realized in benefit costs.
The CBO's contract was not renewed for the 2016-17 school year, and terminated in Sept. 2016.  This 
assignment could not be filled and was covered by the Marin County Office of Education until a contractor 
could be found to finish out the year.  Savings were realized in both salary and benefits.
Certificated Salaries:
The original district budget included a .40 FTE classroom position which was eliminated with the 
resignation of the district's principal.  Her assignment included a .60 FTE portion for administrative work,  
which was maintained in the 2016-17 budget.  Estimated actual  amounts impacted were certificated 
teaching position of .4 FTE, proportionate share of benefits and source of funding, Parcel Tax .

--------Describe any changes made to this goal, expected 
outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those 
changes can be found in the LCAP.

For the 2017-18 school year, Goal 2 has been removed and the corresponding actions have been 
transferred to the goal that states "Prepare all students to transition successfully to high school both 
academically and socially." (formerly Goal 3). No actions/services have been removed from the previous 
year's LCAP. Due to the removal of Goal 2, the remaining goals have shifted in order to be numerically 
accurate.

The following actions/services have been added:
Goal 2 (Action 2.3) Implement a Student Study Team to discuss and monitor progress of at-risk students, 
including those who are English Learners, Foster Youth and/or Low Income.
Goal 2 (Action 2.10) Outreach to the local preschools to identify potential incoming students.
Goal 2 (Action 2.13)  The district will investigate and pilot a school-wide social emotional program to 
support student interaction and enhance student engagement.

158

158



Page 15 of 97

Annual Update LCAP Year Reviewed:   2016-17

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Goal
3

Prepare all students to transition successfully to high school both academically and socially       

----------State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
COE       9 10
LOCAL   

ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

EXPECTED ACTUAL

a) All students (100%) in grades K-8 will be enrolled in broad courses 
of study and will have access to standards-aligned textbooks, 
materials, and assessments.

b) Of general education students, 70% will demonstrate proficiency on 
district and statewide assessments in academic subjects while 50% of 
all English Language Learners will achieve proficiency in English 
Language Arts and 25% in Math in 2016-17, 35% in Math in 2017-18, 
and 50% in Math 2018-19.

c) The majority (75%) of English Language Learners will be 
reclassified as English proficient by the end of 8th grade.

d) Students receiving special education services will meet 75% of their 
annual IEP goals.

e) All (100%) of Nicasio School's students will matriculate to high 
school with at least 80% transitioning successfully into the social and 
academic climate. By the end of the first semester of their freshman 
year, at least 80% of alumni will earn an average grade of B- or higher 
in four academic subjects: English, Math, Social Studies and Science. 
At least 80% of these alumni will also report that they were able to 
integrate successfully within the social climate of high school. Due to 
the small size of alumni classes (3-7 students per class), percentages 
will be calculated based on an average over a 4-year span (the current 

a) In 2016-17, all students (100%) in grades K-8 were enrolled in broad courses of 
study as evidenced by the Master schedule and had access to standards-aligned 
textbooks, materials and assessments. In 2015-16, the District adopted and 
implemented the California-approved program My Math for grades K-5 and Glencoe 
California Math (Courses 1,2,3) for grades 6-8. During 2016-17, the district continued 
to pilot Mc-Graw Hill's Reading Wonders and Units of Study in Writing by Lucy 
Calkins, both of which are aligned to Common Core standards. It is anticipated 
programs will be formally adopted by the board by the start of the 2017-18 school 
year. In the spring of 2017, staff investigated potential English Language-Arts 
programs for grades 6-8. Social studies and science programs are aligned with 
current California learning standards.

b) The following results indicate proficiency rates on state assessments (CAASPP) 
given May 2016:

70% of all students tested (grades 3-8) met or exceed standard on English Language 
Arts assessment
45% of students tested (grades 3-8) met or exceeded standard on Mathematics 
assessment

Neither (0%) of the 2 English Language Learners (grades 3-8) tested met or 
exceeded standard on English Language Arts assessment
Neither (0%) of the 2 English Language Learners (grades 3-8) met or exceeded 
standard on Mathematics assessment

159

159



Page 16 of 97

year and the three prior years). Consistent use of measuring student 
progress against common core aligned report card.

Metric(s): Student Access and Enrollment, School Accountability 
Report Card (List of District-adopted standards-aligned materials), 
Quarterly Report on Williams Uniform Complaints, Report Cards, State 
Assessments (Smarter Balanced, CST, CELDT), EL Progress and 
Reclassification Rates, IEP Progress Reports, Master Schedule for 
Learning Center Program, Surveys of Nicasio School Graduates and 
Parents, Middle School Dropout Rate
      

c) During the 2016-17 school year, 7 students were designated as English Learners. 
According to annual CELDT results, 3 students (50%) increased performance by one 
or more level. 3 students (50%) had either no change or decreased by one 
performance level. 1 student was administered an initial assessment and therefore 
had no prior results with which to compare growth. In spring 2017, one student was 
redesignated as Fluent English Proficient.

Two (50%) of the 4 Reclassified Fluent English Proficient students (grades 3-8) met 
or exceeded standard on English Language Arts assessment
None (0%) of the 4 Reclassified Fluent English Proficient students (grades 3-8) met 
or exceeded standard on Mathematics assessment

d) Students receiving special education services made adequate yearly progress on 
goals as reported on Individualized Education Plan progress reports. Goals were 
monitored and updated as appropriate by special education staff through the IEP 
process.

e) Due to the vacancy in the principal position at the conclusion of the first semester, 
a survey was not distributed to former Nicasio students to provide data about their 
achievement and ability to transition successfully into the social and academic 
climate of high school. However, in 2015-16, a total of 6 Nicasio School graduates 
were asked to respond to an alumni survey, of which 4 responded. This data was 
synthesized with alumni responses from 2014-15 for a collective total of 12 former 
students participants.

Alumni surveyed are enrolled in the following schools:  Sir Francis Drake High 
School, San Domenico, Drew High School, Marin Academy, and Marin School of 
Environmental Leadership at Terra Linda High School.

12 former students who participated in the alumni survey indicated that Nicasio 
School prepared them to transition successfully into high school to varying degrees: 
92% felt prepared in English, 85% felt prepared in Math, and 92% felt prepared in 
Social Studies, while 33% felt prepared in Science.

These 12 former students reported that, during their freshman year, 100% received a 
“B” or higher in English, Math and Social Studies; 91% received a “B” or higher in 
Science; 9% received a “D” in Science.

On the 2015-16 alumni survey, students report that they would have benefited from 
more class periods in science in middle school and from having more written 
projects, such as essays and slide presentations, and culminating projects.

      

160

160



Page 17 of 97

ACTIONS / SERVICES

Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed.

startcollapse

Action    1
Actions/Services

PLANNED
3.1 All students will have access to current state-adopted 
textbooks and materials.       

ACTUAL
3.1 In 2016-17, all students (100%) in grades K-8 were 
enrolled in broad courses of study and had access to 
standards-aligned textbooks, materials and assessments. In 
2015-16, the District adopted and implemented the California-
approved program My Math for grades K-5 and Glencoe 
California Math (Courses 1,2,3) for grades 6-8. During 2016-
17, the district continued to pilot Mc-Graw Hill's Reading 
Wonders and Units of Study in Writing by Lucy Calkins, both 
of which are aligned to Common Core standards. It is 
anticipated programs will be formally adopted by the board by 
the start of the 2017-18 school year. In the spring of 2017, 
staff investigated potential English Language-Arts programs 
for grades 6-8. Social studies and science textbooks and 
materials are aligned with current California learning 
standards.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
 4000-4999: Books And Supplies  $9,278 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
 4000-4999: Books And Supplies  $8,182

Parcel Taxes    $2,098 Parcel Taxes   $112
EPA    $4,180 EPA   0
  Supplemental  $3,000 Supplemental  LCFF $8,067
Instructional Materials  4000-4999: Books And Supplies  $8,251  Instructional Materials 4000-4999: Books And Supplies  $5,610
  Lottery $6,083   Lottery $4,480
Federal REAP    $1,668 Federal REAP   $630
  Base $500   Base $500

Action    2
Actions/Services

PLANNED ACTUAL

161

161



Page 18 of 97

3.2 Make professional development opportunities available to 
all teachers and staff through on-site and off-site trainings and 
workshops as needed. For certificated teachers, three in-
service professional development days will be included in the 
annual school calendar. In addition, certificated teachers will 
meet weekly for 1- hour within their instructional day (PLC 
Meeting) with a focus on professional growth.       

3.2
8/15/2016 Professional Development Day
Mandated Reporter Training  for certificated and classified 
staff provided by the Marin County Department of Children 
and Family Services

8/15/2016 Professional Development Day (cont.)
CPR/AED Training and Certification for certificated and 
classified staff.

10/17/2016 Professional Development Day
Certificated and classified staff reviewed emergency 
procedures and materials. Lockdown procedures were 
reviewed and practiced.

3/12/2017 Professional Development Day
• All teachers and staff completed a review of our LCAP 

and provided feedback on previous goals and for 2017-18 
goals

• Classroom teachers received training about the Smarter 
Balanced Assessment System (how to use the system, 
interim assessment blocks, practice tests)

• Classroom teachers reviewed current curriculum and 
needs for 2017-18

3/21/2017-3/22/2017
• Our K-2 classroom teacher attended "Capturing Kids 

Hearts" seminar at MCOE. This was a 2 day training 
regarding the implementation of a social-emotional 
curriculum and school-wide program.

4/19/2017
• Teachers and staff attended presentation by Don Carney 

of the Marin YMCA about the use of restorative practices 
in schools (on-site)

6/27/17-6/29/17
• Our classroom teacher for grades 3-5 enrolled in the 

Project Based Learning Institute at Walker Creek Ranch 
(sponsored by MCOE)

162

162



Page 19 of 97

Students are dismissed one hour early on Wednesdays. The 
three certificated teachers and principal used this time to 
meet weekly, work collaboratively, and share ideas related to 
curriculum and instruction to support students in meeting 
state standards in their academic programs.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
 3000-3999: Employee Benefits  $6,300  

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Certificated salary and benefits additional staff dev days  LCFF $4,560

Registration & Travel   LCFF $2,500  Registration & Travel  LCFF $1,060
Instructional Internet   LCFF $4,408  Instructional Internet   Locally Defined $ 4,408
Ed Tech Professional Services   LCFF $7,875  Ed Tech Professional Services   LCFF $ 4,430

Action    3
Actions/Services

PLANNED
3.3 Assess all students regularly to evaluate level of 
proficiency and determine individual learning needs for 
targeted intervention. Administer standardized tests to 
evaluate and monitor student progress: California English 
Language Development Test (CELDT), CAASPP (ELA, Math, 
Science), and classroom assessments using standards-based 
adopted curriculum.       

ACTUAL
3.3 All English Language Learners took part in the California 
English Development Test (CELDT) in fall of 2016. Students' 
results were reviewed and compared to prior year scores to 
identify trends and growth. Results were shared with the 
students' teachers to provide them with data to guide their 
instructional practices.

During the 2016-17 school year, 7 students were designated 
as English Learners. According to annual CELDT results, 3 
students (50%) increased performance by one or more level. 
3 students (50%) had either no change or decreased by one 
performance level. 1 student was administered an initial 
assessment and therefore had no prior results with which to 
compare growth. In spring 2017, one student was 
redesignated as Fluent English Proficient.

Classroom assessments using state-adopted curriculum are 
administered on a regular basis, which provides data for 
standards-based report cards. Report cards are aligned with 
Common Core state standards and are translated into 
Spanish as needed. Parents receive report cards three times 
per year and also receive progress reports at the mid-term of 
each trimester.

163

163



Page 20 of 97

Students in grades 3-8 participated in the Spring 2016 and 
2017 Smarter Balanced (CAASPP) assessment. In Spring 
2017 there was one parent exemption, resulting in a 97% 
participation rate. All students in grades 5 and 7 participated 
in the California Physical Fitness Test. All students in grades 
5 and 8 participated in the pilot of the California Science Test 
(CAST).

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Assessment costs included in Goal #2 – Action #1 Principal & Action #3 
Teachers. Additional classified salary and benefits for CELDT $1,428 
Funding Source LCFF Supplemental    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Assessment costs included in Goal #2 - Action #1 Principal & Action #3 
Teachers. Additional classified salary and benefits for CELDT $ 847 
Funding Source LCFF Supplemental    

Action    4
Actions/Services

PLANNED
3.4 Place special education students in appropriate 
instructional programs and provide specialized services in 
accordance with Individualized Education Plan (IEP). Monitor 
special education placement and services through IEP 
progress reports and annual review to ensure that students 
have reachable IEP goals.       

ACTUAL
3.4 Student progress reports related to special education 
(IEP) goals were prepared each trimester to accompany 
student report cards. These are prepared by MCOE 
personnel who provide special education services at Nicasio 
School.

Special education placement and services have been 
monitored on a regular basis for accuracy and to assess 
student progress. Oversight was provided by the LEA 
Representative (Principal) and the Resource Specialist 
provided by MCOE.

During 2016-17, a total of 8 District students have been 
enrolled in special education programs, which represents 
18% of the study body. Most students are enrolled at Nicasio 
School and receive support in resource, speech/language, 
counseling, and occupational therapy on site. One student is 
enrolled in programs outside of the District.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Special Education Services Goal    $159,284  

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Special Education Services Goal    $107,081

Excess Costs & COE Transfer  7000-7439: Other Outgo  $91,530 Excess Costs and COE Transfer 7000-7439: Other Outgo  $ 95,901
  LCFF $206,326   LCFF $162,213
Parcel Taxes    $17,550 Parcel Taxes   $ 17,500

164

164



Page 21 of 97

SELPA    $26,938 SELPA   $ 23,269

Action    5
Actions/Services

PLANNED
3.5 Ensure all certificated teachers have an appropriate 
credential to instruct English language learners. This will result 
in 75% of EL students’ overall CELDT scores increasing by at 
least one performance level over a 12-month period.       

ACTUAL
3.5 The principal and teachers regularly monitor the 
academic achievement of students who have been 
redesignated as Fluent English Proficient (RFEP) to ensure 
that they receive adequate support.  RFEP students, as 
needed, still have access to the Learning Center and its 
resources.

In 2016-17, there were a total of 7 English Language 
Learners. Of these students, 1 student was reclassified as 
Fluent English Proficient (FEP), 4 students (57%) increased 
their overall score by one or more performance levels, and 1 
student made some progress within the same performance 
level as the prior year.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Costs included in Goal 2, Action #1 (monitoring) and Goal 3, Action #2 
(professional development)    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Costs included in Goal #2, Action #1 (monitoring) and Goal 3, Action #2 
(professional development)   

Action    6
Actions/Services

PLANNED
3.6 Provide scholarships to low income students and foster 
youth for school programs, such as field trips.       

ACTUAL
3.6 All students (100%) in grades 3-8 were able to attend 
their overnight year-end fieldtrips. Scholarships were 
provided as needed.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
 5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating Expenditures  
$3,000  

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
 5800: Professional/Consulting Services And Operating Expenditures  
$1,332

Action    7
Actions/Services

PLANNED
3.7 Maintain a Learning Center that provides instructional 
support for English language learners and students with 
disabilities.

ACTUAL
3.7 All (100%) English Language Learners are assigned to 
the Learning Center for English Language Development 
(ELD) instruction (either under the direct instruction of their 
core teacher or facilitated by an instructional assistant) in 
place of the Spanish enrichment program. Students in grades 

165

165



Page 22 of 97

Provide emphasis on building academic vocabulary and skills 
in mathematics.

       

K-2 participate in the Learning Center program for one class 
period two days per week. Students in grades 3-8 participate 
in the Learning Center Program three days per week. 
Students who have been reclassified as Fluent English 
Proficient (FEP) were given the choice to remain in the 
Learning Center for ongoing support. 

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Instructional Aide    $26,259  

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Instructional Aide   $ 23,052

Action    8
Actions/Services

PLANNED
3.8 Distribute a survey to former Nicasio School students and 
a survey to their parents after the first semester of their 
freshman year at high school. Use data collected to modify 
instructional program appropriately.       

ACTUAL
3.8 Due to the vacancy in the principal position at the 
conclusion of the first semester, this survey was never 
disseminated to former Nicasio school students.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Costs included in Goal 2, Action #1 (Admin staff)    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Costs included in Goal 2; Action #1, (Admin staff)   

ANALYSIS
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Use actual annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.

Describe the overall implementation of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal.

Overall implementation of the actions and services described above resulted in all current student groups 
having access to a broad course of study, supports and services.

Due to the vacancy in the principal position at the conclusion of the first semester, a survey was not 
distributed to former Nicasio students to provide data about their achievement and ability to transition 
successfully into the social and academic climate of high school. However, in 2015-16, a total of 6 Nicasio 
School graduates were asked to respond to an alumni survey, of which 4 responded. This data was 
synthesized with alumni responses from 2014-15 for a collective total of 12 former students participants.
12 former students who participated in the alumni survey indicated that Nicasio School prepared them to 
transition successfully into high school to varying degrees: 92% felt prepared in English, 85% felt prepared 
in Math, and 92% felt prepared in Social Studies, while 33% felt prepared in Science. These 12 former 
students reported that, during their freshman year, 100% received a “B” or higher in English, Math and 
Social Studies; 91% received a “B” or higher in Science; 9% received a “D” in Science. On the 2015-16 
alumni survey, students report that they would have benefitted from more class periods in science in 
middle school and from having more written projects, such as essays and slide presentations, and 
culminating projects. This information was used by teaching staff to guide supports and instruction during 
the 2016-17 school year.

166

166



Page 23 of 97

--------Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services 
to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA.

Overall implementation of the actions and services described above resulted in all current student groups 
having access to a broad course of study, supports and services. However, student scores on the 2016 
Smarter Balanced CAASPP assessment declined significantly in both English Language Arts (-16 points) 
and Mathematics (-18.4 points). School staff will consider these results when planning instructional 
programs, evaluating curriculum, and identifying supports for students.

Due to the vacancy in the principal position at the conclusion of the first semester, a survey was not 
distributed to former Nicasio students to provide data about their achievement and ability to transition 
successfully into the social and academic climate of high school. Results from the 2015-16 school year 
indicate that the majority of Nicasio students are successfully transitioning to high school both academically 
and socially. This goal will be maintained for the 2017-18 school year and alumni input will be sought 
during their freshman year.

--------Explain material differences between Budgeted 
Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.

2016-17 Adopted budget included special education student services for two students who did not return at 
the beginning of the school year.  The budget was revised to reflect actual contract services. 

--------Describe any changes made to this goal, expected 
outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those 
changes can be found in the LCAP.

For the 2017-18 school year, Goal 2 has been removed and the corresponding actions have been 
transferred to this goal, which states "Prepare all students to transition successfully to high school both 
academically and socially." (formerly Goal 3). No actions/services have been removed from the previous 
year's LCAP. Due to the removal of Goal 2, the remaining goals have shifted in order to be numerically 
accurate.

The following actions/services have been added:
Goal 2 (Action 2.3) Implement a Student Study Team to discuss and monitor progress of at-risk students, 
including those who are English Learners, Foster Youth and/or Low Income.
Goal 2 (Action 2.10) Outreach to the local preschools to identify potential incoming students.
Goal 2 (Action 2.13)  The district will investigate and pilot a school-wide social emotional program to 
support student interaction and enhance student engagement.

167

167



Page 24 of 97

Annual Update LCAP Year Reviewed:   2016-17

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Goal
4

Encourage all parents to be active participants in the school community       

----------State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
COE       9 10
LOCAL   

ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

EXPECTED ACTUAL

a) Students’ families, both English-Speaking and Spanish-speaking, 
will be well informed about the school’s news and events and about 
their children’s progress in school; this will be demonstrated by at least 
85% of surveyed parents indicating that communication from the 
school is effective.

Metric(s): Parent Input (Annual Survey of Parents/Guardians, Back-to-
School Questionnaire (identify preferred communication methods), 
Parent Participation (attendance at school events, donations 
(time/money) to classrooms, field trips), Volunteer Records 
(Foundation, Parent Club, Field Trip Drivers, Visitor Sign-in Log)

      

a) In April 2017, a total of 42 parents participated in the Nicasio Annual Parent 
Survey (from our 33 families total).

Of this year’s 42 participants, 8 (19%) were from Spanish-speaking households, 
which is a close representation of the overall percentage of Spanish-speaking 
households school-wide (21%).

90 % of parents agree that communication between the school office and home is 
sufficient. 79% of them find the most value in email correspondence. 68% consider 
the online Parent Portal an effective forum for weekly communications.

81% of parents consider communication between teachers and parents sufficient. 
With that said, 93%-95% of the parents consider the content provided by teachers on 
progress reports and report cards as valuable.

Communication from school-related organizations are viewed as sufficient as follows: 
Parent Club (80%), Nicasio School Foundation (74%), and School Board (45%).

      

ACTIONS / SERVICES

Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed.

168

168



Page 25 of 97

startcollapse

Action    1
Actions/Services

PLANNED
4.1 Ensure regular, consistent and clear communication 
between school and the home for both English-speaking and 
Spanish-speaking households.       

ACTUAL
4.1 An online parent survey was made available to all parents 
in April 2017. The survey was available in both English and 
Spanish. Parents were also provided with a hard copy upon 
request and their data was later hand-entered online by a 
school employee. To encourage participation from Spanish-
speaking families, the school’s translator contacted each 
family in person or by phone to provide hard copies if needed 
and any other necessary assistance.

The office manager posts weekly news to the online Parent 
Portal every Thursday. This is maintained on a regular basis 
in both English and Spanish along with an online calendar 
that is bilingual.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Costs included in Goal 2, Action #1, School Site Administrative salaries    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Costs included in Goal 2, Action #1, School Site Administrative  salaries    

Action    2
Actions/Services

PLANNED
4.2 Ensure regular, consistent and clear communication 
between the school board and home by including the board 
agenda and approved minutes on a monthly basis in the 
Parent Portal or other routine school-to-home communication 
system.       

ACTUAL
4.2 The office manager posts the board agenda and 
approved minutes on a monthly basis to the online Parent 
Portal. Copies of the board agenda and approved minutes 
are also posted in the main office on a monthly basis.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Costs included in Goal 2, Action #1, School Site Administrative salaries    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Costs included in Goal 2, Action #1, School Site Administrative salaries   

Action    3
Actions/Services

PLANNED
4.3 Through a Back-to-School questionnaire and an annual 
parent survey, identify the preferred communication methods 
of each parent/guardian. Mid-way through the year, distribute 
an annual survey to identify communication methods that are 
effective and where communications can improve.       

ACTUAL
4.3 An online parent survey was made available to all parents 
in April 2017. The survey was available in both English and 
Spanish. Parents were also provided with a hard copy upon 
request and their data was later hand-entered online by a 
school employee. To encourage participation from Spanish-
speaking families, the school’s translator contacted each 

169

169



Page 26 of 97

family in person or by phone to provide hard copies if needed 
and any other necessary assistance.

The administrative team collaborated with the Parent Club 
and Nicasio School Foundation to include a questionnaire in 
Back-to-School Packets to survey parents about volunteer 
interests and availability.

As a result of this information, parents are set up with their 
preferred method of communication, either by email 
notification and online communications from the school via 
the Parent Portal or with hard copies sent home every week 
on Thursdays.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Costs included in Goal 2, Action #1, School Site Administrative salaries    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Costs included in Goal 2, Action #1, School Site Administrative salaries   

Action    4
Actions/Services

PLANNED
4.4 Employ a part-time English/Spanish translator to serve as 
school-to- home communicator (oral and written) and parent 
liaison. Spanish translation services will be provided to 100% 
of Spanish-speaking households, both orally and in writing. 
Student reports, student records, school documents and 
forms, and school news will be provided in both English and 
Spanish languages.       

ACTUAL
4.4 A part-time classified employee was contracted to provide 
translation services to 100% of Spanish-speaking 
households, both orally and in writing, during the 2016-17 
school year. 

Expenditures
BUDGETED
 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries  $5,438 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
 2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries  $ 3,545

ANALYSIS
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Use actual annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.

Describe the overall implementation of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal.

The following actions/services were implemented during the 2016-17 school year to encourage all parents 
to be active participants in the school community:
• regular, clear and consistent communication between the school and family for both English and 

Spanish-speaking households, via the Parent Portal or hardcopies as requested. The Parent Portal is 
updated weekly with relevant information in both English and Spanish.

170

170



Page 27 of 97

• school board communications (agendas, minutes) are posted monthly via the Parent Portal and in the 
main office

• parents' preference of communication mode is solicited and used during the school year
• a part-time Spanish interpreter serves as school-to-home communicator (written and oral) and parent 

liason

--------Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services 
to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA.

As a result of the above actions/services, students’ families, both English-Speaking and Spanish-speaking, 
are well informed about the school’s news and events and about their children’s progress in school. This is 
demonstrated by 90% of surveyed parents indicating that communication from the school is effective.

--------Explain material differences between Budgeted 
Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.

Budgeted costs were based on prior year's services.  Services were lower in 2016-17.

--------Describe any changes made to this goal, expected 
outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those 
changes can be found in the LCAP.

For 2017-18, this goal will be continued. Due to the consolidation of Goal 2 and Goal 3, this goal has 
shifted to become Goal 3 in 2017-18 order to be numerically accurate.

171

171



Page 28 of 97

Annual Update LCAP Year Reviewed:   2016-17

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Goal
5

Ensure all facilities are up-to-date, functional and safe       

----------State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
COE       9 10
LOCAL   

ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

EXPECTED ACTUAL

a) The annual Facilities Inspection Report will indicate that the campus 
facilities are in “exemplary” status. Any corrective actions 
recommended by the MSIA facility risk management report will be 
remedied within one fiscal year based on level of priority.

b) Students will be able to learn and play on a clean and safe campus, 
resulting in 0% injuries related to poor condition or maintenance of the 
facilities.

Metric: Work Order Log, Annual Facilities Review (Marin School 
Insurance Authority - MSIA), Annual Facilities Inspection Report, 
Marin County Health Department Inspection (kitchen), Annual Fire 
Inspection, Annual Fire Alarm Inspection, Weekly Inspection of 
Potable Water, Monthly Inspection of Fire Extinguishers and AED, 
Annual Inspection of Heating System, Monthly Principal’s Report 
(section re: campus and facilities), Annual Parent Survey

      

a) The Annual Facilities Inspection Report completed in April 2017 indicated an 
"exemplary" status with an overall rating of 100%.

b) Zero (0) injuries were reported due to safety issues related to the campus or 
facilities.
      

ACTIONS / SERVICES

Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed.

startcollapse

172

172



Page 29 of 97

Action    1
Actions/Services

PLANNED
5.1 Conduct an annual facilities inspection in 
December/January and complete related report; use data 
collected to prepare the section for facilities on the School 
Accountability Report Card (SARC). Maintain membership in 
Marin Schools Insurance Authority JPA.       

ACTUAL
5.1 Principal and Office Manager conducted the annual 
facilities inspection in April and completed related report, 
using date collected to prepare facilities portion of the School 
Accountability Report Card (SARC).  The District maintains 
membership in Marin Schools Insurance Authority (MSIA) 
JPA. 

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Property & Liability Insurance   LCFF $6,163  

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Property & Liability Insurance   LCFF $ 6,162

Action    2
Actions/Services

PLANNED
5.2 Maintain communication system between administration 
and custodian for work order requests from teachers and staff.       

ACTUAL
5.2 Office Manager continues to monitor communications 
with the custodian and tracks completion of work order 
requests from teachers and staff. Work order requests 
submitted by teachers and staff are consistently completed in 
a timely manner by the custodian generally within 1-2 days of 
the request. 

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Custodian salary 3000-3999: Employee Benefits LCFF $38,223  

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Custodian salary  3000-3999: Employee Benefits LCFF $ 39,003

M&O supplies   LCFF $6,100  M & O supplies  LCFF $ 4,825
Repairs   LCFF $3,800 Repairs  LCFF $ 4,389
Health & Safety licenses  LCFF $1,676 Health & Safety licenses   LCFF $ 1,067
Utilities   LCFF $20,002 Utilities  LCFF $ 24,207
Fund 14 Repairs  LCFF $10,000 Fund 14 Repairs  LCFF $ 10,000

Action    3
Actions/Services

PLANNED
5.3 Develop a deferred maintenance schedule.       

ACTUAL
5.3 No progress was made toward this goal. The District does 
move funds into deferred maintenance annually, but there is 
no current schedule on file. It is recommended that this goal 
be carried forward to 2017-18.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Included in staff costs – Goal 2, Action #1 Administration, and this goal 
Action #2 Custodian    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
   

Action    4

173

173



Page 30 of 97

Actions/Services
PLANNED
5.4 Maintain existing potable water system. Continue to 
pursue viable options for long-term potable water system and 
availability of potable water.       

ACTUAL
5.4 The District continues to maintain existing potable water 
system and continues to pursue viable option for long-term 
upgrades to existing system. 

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Water testing & supplies 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures LCFF $12,000 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Water testing and supplies 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures LCFF $ 12,720

Water deliveries   LCFF $7,000 Water deliveries   LCFF 0
Water Repairs  5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures 
LCFF $720 

Water Repairs 5000-5999: Services And Other Operating Expenditures 
LCFF $800

Action    5
Actions/Services

PLANNED
5.5 Review facility risk management report provided by 
Keenan Insurance to identify and implement corrective action 
when necessary.       

ACTUAL
5.5 Risk Management report furnished by Keenan was 
reviewed; no corrections necessary.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Costs included in Goal #2, Action #1, Administrative staff.    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Costs included in Goal #2, Action #1, Administrative staff   

ANALYSIS
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Use actual annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.

Describe the overall implementation of the 
actions/services to achieve the articulated goal.

The Annual Facilities Inspection Report completed in April 2017 indicated an "exemplary" status with an 
overall rating of 100%.. The communication system between staff and custodial staff is effective and 
ensures students are able to learn and play on a clean and safe campus. The District continues to maintain 
existing potable water system and continues to pursue viable option for long-term upgrades to existing 
system.

To date the district has not created a deferred maintenance schedule.  Funds are moved to deferred 
maintenance annually, but there is no current schedule on file. It is recommended that this goal be carried 
forward to 2017-18.

--------Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services 
to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA.

As a result of the above actions/services:

• zero (0) injuries were reported due to safety issues related to the campus or facilities.
• the Annual Facilities Inspection Report completed in April 2017 indicated an "exemplary" status with an 

overall rating of 100%

174

174



Page 31 of 97

--------Explain material differences between Budgeted 
Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.

The district did not need water delivered to campus in 2016-17, saving an estimated $ 7,000 from original 
budget.  System has been fully functional. 

--------Describe any changes made to this goal, expected 
outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those 
changes can be found in the LCAP.

For 2017-18, this goal will be continued. Due to the consolidation of Goal 2 and Goal 3, this goal has 
shifted to become Goal 4 in 2017-18 order to be numerically accurate.

175

175



Page 32 of 97

Stakeholder Engagement
--------------------LCAP Year 2017–18 2018–19 2019–20

----------
INVOLVEMENT PROCESS FOR LCAP AND ANNUAL UPDATE

How, when, and with whom did the LEA consult as part of the planning process for this LCAP/Annual Review and Analysis?

1. Students in grades 5-8 participated in the school’s annual survey in April 2017. Results were analyzed by certificated and classified staff at a meeting on April 26, 2017.

2. Parents were invited to participate in the school's online annual survey during a two-week period from April 17th to 28th, 2017. Those without internet access were provided 
with a hard copy of the survey.A total of 42 parents participated in the school survey (from our 33 families total). Of this year’s 42 participants, 8 (19%) were from Spanish-
speaking households, which is a close representation of the overall percentage of Spanish-speaking households school-wide (21%). Results were used to analyze/review Goals 2 
and 4 (2016-17) and inform baseline of Goal 3 (2017-18).

3. Certificated teachers, including the union representative of the Nicasio Teachers Association (NTA), along with classified employees met on March 13, 2017 for an initial review 
the 2016-17 LCAP and to provide input for the 2017-18 LCAP.

4. Certificated teachers, including the union representative of the Nicasio Teachers Association (NTA), along with classified employees met on April 26, 2017 to continue 
reviewing the 2016-17 LCAP and to provide input for the 2017-18 LCAP. This meeting took place after school during the regular weekly PLC meeting with a focus on student 
survey results.

5. Certificated teachers, including the union representative of the Nicasio Teachers Association (NTA), along with classified employees met on May 24, 2017 for a final review of 
the 2016-17 goals and to review the 2015-16 annual updates. This meeting took place after school during the regular weekly PLC meeting.

6. The LCAP Parent Advisory meeting was held on May 23, 2017. Parents were invited to participate on this committee, including representatives of the Nicasio School 
Foundation, the Parent Club, and Spanish speaking households. Translation services were provided.

7. A public hearing was schedule for the regular school board meeting on June 1, 2017.

8. A special board meeting was held on June 22, 2017 to review and approve the 2017-18 budget and LCAP.
       

INVOLVEMENT PROCESS FOR LCAP AND ANNUAL UPDATE
IMPACT ON LCAP AND ANNUAL UPDATE

How did these consultations impact the LCAP for the upcoming year?

1. Provided data for Goal. This method for student engagement will continue for 2017-18.

2. Provided data for 2016-17 Goal 2 and Goal 4. This provided feedback to inform actions to engage parents to be active participants in our school community.

3. Goals from 2016-17 were reviewed. Suggestions were made regarding the following actions:
Outcomes:
Goal 1 remained unchanged.

176

176



Page 33 of 97

Goal 2, Action 2.1: Added outreach to local preschools as avenue to outreach to parents and community members to identify potential incoming students.
Goal 2, (new action): Added the district will investigate and pilot a school-wide social emotional learning program to support student interaction and enhance student engagement.
Goal 3, Action 3.3:  Added the district will implement a Student Study Team to discuss and monitor progress of at-risk students.
Goal 5, Action 5.3: Discussed the creation of a deferred maintenance schedule. This was not developed in 2016-17. This action will continue.

Staff also discussed consolidating Goals 2 and 3 for the 2017-18 LCAP. As a result, for the 2017-18 school year Goal 2 has been removed and the corresponding actions have 
been transferred to the goal that states "Prepare all students to transition successfully to high school both academically and socially." (formerly Goal 3). No actions/services have 
been removed from the previous year's LCAP. Due to the removal of Goal 2, the remaining goals have shifted in order to be numerically accurate. The goals for the 2017-18 school 
year are:

Goal 1: Identify, attract, and retain outstanding staff
Goal 2: Prepare all students to transition successfully to high school both academically and socially
Goal 3: Ensure all parents are active participants in the school community
Goal 4: Ensure all facilities are up-to-date, functional and safe

The following actions/services have been added for 2017-18:

Goal 2 (Action 2.3) Implement a Student Study Team to discuss and monitor progress of at-risk students.
Goal 2 (Action 2.10) Outreach to the local preschools to identify potential incoming students.
Goal 2 (Action 2.13)  The district will investigate and pilot a school-wide social emotional learning program to support student interaction and enhance student engagement.

4. A review of goals from 2015-16 was continued. In addition, staff reviewed and analyzed responses from the annual student survey. These results were noted in Goal 2.  Results 
from the annual school survey (April 2017) indicate that students in grades 5-8 have an overall positive perception of both classroom and school climate. The classroom climate is 
rated as positive by 96% of the students. The school climate is rated as positive by 78% of students ("you enjoy coming to school") and safe by 100% of students ("you feel safe at 
school"). 78% of students responded having a positive relationship with teachers and staff ("you feel comfortable approaching teachers and staff with questions, problems, and 
concerns.") We will continue to address student connectedness and overall positive school climate by investigating and piloting a school-wide social emotional program to support 
student interaction and enhance student engagement. (Goal 2, Action 2.13)

5. Staff conducted a review of the 2017-18 goals, including analysis of baseline data. Input from previous meetings was evident (i.e., consolidation to 4 goals, inclusion of a 
formalized Student Study Team process (Action 2.3), outreach to local preschools to identify potential students (Action 2.10), investigation of a social emotional program (Action 
2.13). Staff also affirmed importance of the Learning Center Program as a means to support English learners. Staff also discussed the importance of piloting a social-emotional 
program before adopting in order to confirm it is a good fit for our small, multi-age learning environment.

6. A general overview was provided of the LCAP's purpose and the state's eight priorities. The parent advisory group reviewed 2016-17 goals and discussed baseline data for 
2017-18 goals. They agreed with the decision to condense to four goals (from five). They provided positive feedback about the new actions/services for 2017-18 (Action 2.3, Action 
2.10, Action 2.13). They provided input about parent communication. The group felt the parent portal was valuable but was difficult to navigate from some browsers and devices. 
The office and administration will investigate ways to streamline access to the parent portal.The group also inquired about the use of a generator in the event of a power outage 
(relating to Goal 4). Nicasio School is designated as an emergency shelter. Therefore, the Nicasio Disaster Council is researching options for purchasing a generator for our multi-
purpose room.

7. An overview of the LCAP was presented. There was no public comment.

8. The 2017-18 LCAP was approved.

       

177

177



Page 34 of 97

Goals, Actions, & Services
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed.
----------

New
  

Modified
  

Unchanged

----------

Goal 1 Identify, attract, and retain outstanding staff       

----------
State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

COE       9 10
LOCAL   

----------
Identified Need • Highly qualified teachers and staff

• Competitive salary schedules

----------
EXPECTED ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

Metric(s): P-2 Attendance 
Report, Teacher Misassignment, 
Employee Longevity List, 
Credential Monitoring Report , 
CTA Comparisons of Salaries - 
Marin, School Accountability 
Report Card (Teacher 
Credentials; Teacher 
Misassignments; Highly 
Qualified Teachers)       

During 2016-17:
a) All students received 
instruction from highly qualified 
teachers, 100% of whom were 
appropriately assigned and 
credentialed.

b) Salaries for certificated and 
classified staff remain 
competitive with comparable 
school districts in Marin County.

a) All students will receive 
instruction from highly qualified 
teachers, 100% of whom will be 
appropriately assigned and 
credentialed.

b) Salaries for certificated 
teachers and for classified staff 
will remain competitive with 
comparable school districts in 
Marin County.

a) All students will receive 
instruction from highly qualified 
teachers, 100% of whom will be 
appropriately assigned and 
credentialed.

b) Salaries for certificated 
teachers and for classified staff 
will remain competitive with 
comparable school districts in 
Marin County.

a) All students will receive 
instruction from highly qualified 
teachers, 100% of whom will be 
appropriately assigned and 
credentialed.

b) Salaries for certificated 
teachers and for classified staff 
will remain competitive with 
comparable school districts in 
Marin County.

PLANNED ACTIONS / SERVICES
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed.

178

178



Page 35 of 97

Action    1
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

1.1 Review Credential Monitoring Report provided by 
Marin County Office of Education. Communicate with 
teachers as needed to ensure that all credentials are 
current.       

1.1 Review Credential Monitoring Report provided by 
Marin County Office of Education. Communicate with 
teachers as needed to ensure that all credentials are 
current.

1.1 Review Credential Monitoring Report provided by 
Marin County Office of Education. Communicate with 
teachers as needed to ensure that all credentials are 
current.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       Costs included in Goal 2, Action 2.9 

School Site Administration - Principal 
and CBO

Budget 
Reference Costs included in Goal 2, Action 2.9 

School Site Administration - Principal and 
CBO

Budget 
Reference Costs included in Goal 2, Action 2.9 

School Site Administration - Principal and 
CBO

Action    2
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

179

179



Page 36 of 97

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

1.2 Maintain a competitive salary schedule and provide 
competitive health and welfare benefits as a result of 
labor negotiations.       

1.2 Maintain a competitive salary schedule and provide 
competitive health and welfare benefits as a result of 
labor negotiations.

1.2 Maintain a competitive salary schedule and provide 
competitive health and welfare benefits as a result of 
labor negotiations.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $ 130,168 Amount $132,771 Amount $ 135,427

       $ 130,168Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $ 130,168Budget 
Reference       

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries
Certificated teachers'  salaries

Budget 
Reference

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries
Certificated teachers'  salaries

Budget 
Reference

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries
Certificated teachers'  salaries

Amount       $ 89,976 Amount $ 91,776 Amount $ 93,611

       $ 89,976Source       Locally Defined Source Locally Defined Source Locally Defined

       $ 89,976Budget 
Reference       

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries

Budget 
Reference Parcel Tax - Certificated teacher's salary

Budget 
Reference Parcel Tax - Certificated teacher's salary

180

180



Page 37 of 97

Parcel Tax - Certificated teacher's salary

Amount       $35,748 Amount $ 40,443 Amount $ 45,751

       $35,748Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $35,748Budget 
Reference       

3000-3999: Employee Benefits
Teacher H & W

Budget 
Reference Teacher H & W

Budget 
Reference Teacher H & W

Amount       $ 27,242 Amount $ 30,819 Amount 34,923

       $ 27,242Source       Locally Defined Source Locally Defined Source Locally Defined

       $ 27,242Budget 
Reference       

3000-3999: Employee Benefits
Parcel Tax - Teacher H & W

Budget 
Reference

3000-3999: Employee Benefits
Parcel Tax - Teacher H & W

Budget 
Reference

3000-3999: Employee Benefits
Parcel Tax - Teacher H & W

Amount       $2,000 Amount $ 2,000 Amount $ 2,000

       $2,000Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $2,000Budget 
Reference       

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries
Substitute Teachers

Budget 
Reference

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries
Substitute Teachers

Budget 
Reference

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries
Substitute Teachers

Amount       $380 Amount $417 Amount $ 454

       $380Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $380Budget 
Reference       

3000-3999: Employee Benefits
Substitute teachers' benefits

Budget 
Reference

3000-3999: Employee Benefits
Substitute teachers' benefits

Budget 
Reference

3000-3999: Employee Benefits
Substitute teachers' benefits

Action    3
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

181

181



Page 38 of 97

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

1.3 Provide comparable salary increases for classified 
staff based on the outcome of negotiations for certificated 
teachers.       

1.3 Provide comparable salary increases for classified 
staff based on the outcome of negotiations for certificated 
teachers.

1.3 Provide comparable salary increases for classified 
staff based on the outcome of negotiations for certificated 
teachers.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Source       Other Source Other Source Other

Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
Learning Center Aide

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted

Source       Other Source Other Source Other

Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted

Amount       $ 9,470 Amount $ 9,659 Amount $ 9,853

       $ 9,470Source       Federal Funds Source Federal Funds Source Federal Funds

       $ 9,470Budget 
Reference       

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries
Title III and REAP

Budget 
Reference

2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries
Title III and REAP

Budget 
Reference

2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries
Title III and REAP

Amount       $ 995 Amount $ 1,124 Amount $ 1,270

       $ 995Source       Federal Funds Source Federal Funds Source Federal Funds

       $ 995Budget 
Reference       

3000-3999: Employee Benefits
Title III and REAP

Budget 
Reference

3000-3999: Employee Benefits
Title III and REAP

Budget 
Reference

3000-3999: Employee Benefits
Title III and REAP

Amount       $ 42,117 Amount $ 42,959 Amount $ 43,819

       $ 42,117Source       Locally Defined Source Locally Defined Source Locally Defined

       $ 42,117

182

182



Page 39 of 97

Budget 
Reference       

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries
Foundation Grants - Professional 
Experts/Aides

Budget 
Reference

2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries
Foundation Grants - Professional 
Experts/Aides

Budget 
Reference

2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries
Foundation Grants - Professional 
Experts/Aides

Amount       $ 4,422 Amount $ 4,997 Amount $ 5,646

       $ 4,422Source       Locally Defined Source Locally Defined Source Locally Defined

       $ 4,422Budget 
Reference       

3000-3999: Employee Benefits
Foundation Grants - Professional 
Experts/Aides

Budget 
Reference

3000-3999: Employee Benefits
Foundation Grants - Professional 
Experts/Aides

Budget 
Reference

3000-3999: Employee Benefits
Foundation Grants - Professional 
Experts/Aides

Source       LCFF Source Source

Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
School District Administration included in 
Goal 2.9 Principal, Office Manager, and 
Goal 4 Action 4.2 Custodian

Budget 
Reference

Budget 
Reference

Source       Other Source Source

Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted Budget 
Reference

Budget 
Reference

Source       Other Source Source

Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted Budget 
Reference

Budget 
Reference

183

183



Page 40 of 97

Goals, Actions, & Services
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed.
----------

New
  

Modified
  

Unchanged

----------

Goal 2 Prepare all students to transition successfully to high school both academically and socially       

----------
State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

COE       9 10
LOCAL   

----------
Identified Need • Current adoptions of textbooks and materials

• Ongoing professional development and collaboration for teachers and staff
• Standardized assessments
• Differentiated instruction, intervention, and support programs
• Maintain enrollment that creates a balance across grade levels and promotes positive intellectual and social 

interactions for students
• Maintain low teacher to student ratio to promote a successful learning environment for all students in multi-grade, 

self-contained classrooms
• Implement system for identifying at-risk students, either academically or socially
• Measurement of student success in transitioning to high school

----------
EXPECTED ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

Metric(s): Student Access and 
Enrollment, School 
Accountability Report Card (List 
of District-adopted standards-
aligned materials), Quarterly 
Report on Williams Uniform 
Complaints, Report Cards, State 
Assessments (Smarter 
Balanced, CST, CELDT), EL 
Progress and Reclassification 
Rates, IEP Progress Reports, 

In 2016-17:
a)  All students (100%) in grades 
K-8 were enrolled in broad 
courses of study and had access 
to standards-aligned textbooks, 
materials and assessments.

b) In grades TK-5 a state-
standards aligned English 
Language Arts curriculum was 

a) All students (100%) in grades 
K-8 will be enrolled in broad 
courses of study and will have 
access to standards-aligned 
textbooks, materials, and 
assessments.

b) In grades TK-5 a state-
standards aligned English 
Language Arts curriculum will be 

a) All students (100%) in grades 
K-8 will be enrolled in broad 
courses of study and will have 
access to standards-aligned 
textbooks, materials, and 
assessments.

b) A state-standards aligned 
Science curriculum will be 
piloted for grades TK-8.

a) All students (100%) in grades 
K-8 will be enrolled in broad 
courses of study and will have 
access to standards-aligned 
textbooks, materials, and 
assessments.

b) A state-standards aligned 
Science curriculum will continue 
to be piloted for grades TK-8.

184

184



Page 41 of 97

Master Schedule for Learning 
Center Program, Surveys of 
Nicasio School Graduates and 
Parents, Middle School Dropout 
Rate       

piloted (McGraw Hill Reading 
Wonders).

Implementation of previously 
adopted state-standards aligned 
curriculum for Math (My Math in 
grades TK-5 and Glencoe Math 
in grades 6-8), Science (FOSS 
in grades TK-5, CPO in grades 
6-8) and Social Studies (Scott 
Forseman in grades TK-5, 
History Alive! TCI in grades 6-8) 
were maintained.

c) 7 students were designated 
as English Learners. According 
to annual CELDT results, 3 
students (50%) increased 
performance by one or more 
level. 3 students (50%) had 
either no change or decreased 
by one performance level. 1 
student was administered an 
initial assessment and therefore 
had no prior results with which to 
compare growth. In spring 2017, 
one student was redesignated 
as Fluent English Proficient.

d) The following results indicate 
proficiency rates on state 
assessments (CAASPP) given 
May 2016:

70% of all students tested 
(grades 3-8) met or exceed 
standard on English Language 
Arts assessment
45% of students tested (grades 
3-8) met or exceeded standard 
on Mathematics assessment

Neither (0%) of the 2 English 
Language Learners (grades 3-8) 
tested met or exceeded 
standard on English Language 
Arts assessment
Neither (0%) of the 2 English 
Language Learners (grades 3-8) 
met or exceeded standard on 
Mathematics assessment

adopted. (McGraw Hill Reading 
Wonders).

A state-standards aligned 
English Language Arts 
curriculum will be piloted for 
grades 6-8 (McGraw Hill Study 
Sync).

Implementation of previously 
adopted state-standards aligned 
curriculum for Math (My Math in 
grades TK-5 and Glencoe Math 
in grades 6-8), Science (FOSS 
in grades TK-5, CPO in grades 
6-8) and Social Studies (Scott 
Forseman in grades TK-5, 
History Alive! TCI in grades 6-8) 
will be maintained.

c) Students designated as 
English Learners will increase 
performance on annual 
language proficiency 
assessment by on or more level. 
The majority (75%) of English 
Language Learners will be 
reclassified as English proficient 
by the end of 8th grade.

d) Of general education 
students, 70% will demonstrate 
proficiency on district and 
statewide assessments in 
academic subjects while 50% of 
all English Language Learners 
will achieve proficiency in 
English Language Arts and 25% 
in Math in 2016- 17, 35% in 
Math in 2017-18, and 50% in 
Math 2018-19.

e) Consistent use of measuring 
student progress against 
common core aligned report 
card.

f) Students receiving special 
education services will make 
adequate progress on IEP goals 
as measured by progress 

A state-standards aligned 
English Language Arts 
curriculum will continue to be 
piloted for grades 6-8.

Implementation of previously 
adopted state-standards aligned 
curriculum for English Language 
Arts (McGraw Hill Reading 
Wonders in grades TK-5), Math 
(My Math in grades TK-5 and 
Glencoe Math in grades 6-8), 
and Social Studies (Scott 
Forseman in grades TK-5, 
History Alive! TCI in grades 6-8) 
will be maintained.

c) Students designated as 
English Learners will increase 
performance on annual 
language proficiency 
assessment by on or more level. 
The majority (75%) of English 
Language Learners will be 
reclassified as English proficient 
by the end of 8th grade.

d) Of general education 
students, 70% will demonstrate 
proficiency on district and 
statewide assessments in 
academic subjects while 50% of 
all English Language Learners 
will achieve proficiency in 
English Language Arts and 25% 
in Math in 2016- 17, 35% in 
Math in 2017-18, and 50% in 
Math 2018-19.

e) Consistent use of measuring 
student progress against 
common core aligned report 
card.

f) Students receiving special 
education services will make 
adequate progress on IEP goals 
as measured by progress 
reports generated each reporting 
period.

A state-standards aligned 
English Language Arts 
curriculum will be adopted for 
grades 6-8.

Implementation of previously 
adopted state-standards aligned 
curriculum for English Language 
Arts (McGraw Hill Reading 
Wonders in grades TK-5), Math 
(My Math in grades TK-5 and 
Glencoe Math in grades 6-8), 
and Social Studies (Scott 
Forseman in grades TK-5, 
History Alive! TCI in grades 6-8) 
will be maintained.

c) Students designated as 
English Learners will increase 
performance on annual 
language proficiency 
assessment by on or more level. 
The majority (75%) of English 
Language Learners will be 
reclassified as English proficient 
by the end of 8th grade.

d) Of general education 
students, 70% will demonstrate 
proficiency on district and 
statewide assessments in 
academic subjects while 50% of 
all English Language Learners 
will achieve proficiency in 
English Language Arts and 25% 
in Math in 2016- 17, 35% in 
Math in 2017-18, and 50% in 
Math 2018-19.

e) Consistent use of measuring 
student progress against 
common core aligned report 
card.

f) Students receiving special 
education services will make 
adequate progress on IEP goals 
as measured by progress 
reports generated each reporting 
period.

185

185



Page 42 of 97

Two (50%) of the 4 Reclassified 
Fluent English Proficient 
students (grades 3-8) met or 
exceeded standard on English 
Language Arts assessment
None (0%) of the 4 Reclassified 
Fluent English Proficient 
students (grades 3-8) met or 
exceeded standard on 
Mathematics assessment

e) Student progress was 
measured and reported each 
trimester using a report card 
aligned with state adopted 
standards.

f) All students receiving special 
education services made 
progress on IEP goals as 
measured by progress reports.

g) No 2016-17 data for alumni 
transition to high school. Results 
from 2015-16 (12 students) 
indicate:
92% felt prepared in English, 
85% felt prepared in Math, and 
92% felt prepared in Social 
Studies, while 33% felt prepared 
in Science.

h) Enrollment during the 2016-
17 school year included a total 
of 44 students: 13 students 
(K/1/2), 15 students (3/4/5) and 
16 students (6/7/8). Each grade 
level consisted of 3 to 7 students 
with the exception of 
Kindergarten, which only had 1 
student.  Grades K-8 were 
supported by 3 full-time 
certificated teachers.

i) Results from the annual school 
survey (April 2017) indicate that 
students in grades 5-8 have a 
positive perception of both 
classroom and school climate. 
The classroom climate is rated 

reports generated each reporting 
period.

g) All (100%) of Nicasio School's 
students will matriculate to high 
school with at least 80% 
transitioning successfully into 
the social and academic climate. 
By the end of the first semester 
of their freshman year, at least 
80% of alumni will earn an 
average grade of B- or higher in 
four academic subjects: English, 
Math, Social Studies and 
Science. At least 80% of these 
alumni will also report that they 
were able to integrate 
successfully within the social 
climate of high school. Due to 
the small size of alumni classes 
(3-7 students per class), 
percentages will be calculated 
based on an average over a 4- 
year span (the current year and 
the three prior years).

h) Students will benefit by 
having a group of peers in their 
respective grade level with 
whom to learn, interact, and 
play, which will promote student 
engagement. Class sizes will 
average 15-20 students in 
grades TK-5 and up to 25 in 
grades 6-8 based on 3.0 FTE 
certificated teachers with an 
average total enrollment of 50 
students.

i) As a result of pupil 
engagement, students and 
parents will report an average of 
90% satisfaction with overall 
classroom and campus climate.

j) There will be a zero (0) 
dropout rate.

k) Attendance rate will average 
95%. Chronic absenteeism will 
be 5%.

g) All (100%) of Nicasio School's 
students will matriculate to high 
school with at least 80% 
transitioning successfully into 
the social and academic climate. 
By the end of the first semester 
of their freshman year, at least 
80% of alumni will earn an 
average grade of B- or higher in 
four academic subjects: English, 
Math, Social Studies and 
Science. At least 80% of these 
alumni will also report that they 
were able to integrate 
successfully within the social 
climate of high school. Due to 
the small size of alumni classes 
(3-7 students per class), 
percentages will be calculated 
based on an average over a 4- 
year span (the current year and 
the three prior years).

h) Students will benefit by 
having a group of peers in their 
respective grade level with 
whom to learn, interact, and 
play, which will promote student 
engagement. Class sizes will 
average 15-20 students in 
grades TK-5 and up to 25 in 
grades 6-8 based on 3.0 FTE 
certificated teachers with an 
average total enrollment of 50 
students.

i) As a result of pupil 
engagement, students and 
parents will report an average of 
90% satisfaction with overall 
classroom and campus climate.

j) There will be a zero (0) 
dropout rate.

k) Attendance rate will average 
95%. Chronic absenteeism will 
be 5%.

g) All (100%) of Nicasio School's 
students will matriculate to high 
school with at least 80% 
transitioning successfully into 
the social and academic climate. 
By the end of the first semester 
of their freshman year, at least 
80% of alumni will earn an 
average grade of B- or higher in 
four academic subjects: English, 
Math, Social Studies and 
Science. At least 80% of these 
alumni will also report that they 
were able to integrate 
successfully within the social 
climate of high school. Due to 
the small size of alumni classes 
(3-7 students per class), 
percentages will be calculated 
based on an average over a 4- 
year span (the current year and 
the three prior years).

h) Students will benefit by 
having a group of peers in their 
respective grade level with 
whom to learn, interact, and 
play, which will promote student 
engagement. Class sizes will 
average 15-20 students in 
grades TK-5 and up to 25 in 
grades 6-8 based on 3.0 FTE 
certificated teachers with an 
average total enrollment of 50 
students.

i) As a result of pupil 
engagement, students and 
parents will report an average of 
90% satisfaction with overall 
classroom and campus climate.

j) There will be a zero (0) 
dropout rate.

k) Attendance rate will average 
95%. Chronic absenteeism will 
be 5%.

186

186



Page 43 of 97

as positive by 96% of the 
students. The school climate is 
rated as positive by 78% of 
students ("you enjoy coming to 
school") and safe by 100% of 
students ("you feel safe at 
school"). 78% of students 
responded having a positive 
relationship with teachers and 
staff ("you feel comfortable 
approaching teachers and staff 
with questions, problems, and 
concerns.")

j) There was a zero (0) dropout 
rate.

k) Attendance rate was 97% as 
measured by P2 report (March 
2017). Chronic absenteeism was 
7%.

l) There were zero (0) 
suspensions and expulsions.

l) There will be 2 or fewer 
student suspensions and zero 
student expulsions

l) There will be 2 or fewer 
student suspensions and zero 
student expulsions

l) There will be 2 or fewer 
student suspensions and zero 
student expulsions

PLANNED ACTIONS / SERVICES
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed.

Action    1
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

187

187



Page 44 of 97

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

2.1 All students will have access to current state-adopted 
textbooks and materials.       

2.1 All students will have access to current state-adopted 
textbooks and materials.

2.1 All students will have access to current state-adopted 
textbooks and materials.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $8,050 Amount $8,211 Amount $8,375

       $8,050Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $8,050Budget 
Reference       

4000-4999: Books And Supplies
Textbooks / Supplies

Budget 
Reference

4000-4999: Books And Supplies
Textbooks / Supplies

Budget 
Reference

4000-4999: Books And Supplies
Textbooks / Supplies

Amount       $ 2,992 Amount $3,052 Amount $3,113

       $ 2,992Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $ 2,992Budget 
Reference       

4000-4999: Books And Supplies
EPA - Textbooks

Budget 
Reference

4000-4999: Books And Supplies
EPA - Textbooks

Budget 
Reference

4000-4999: Books And Supplies
EPA - Textbooks

Amount       $4,942 Amount $5,000 Amount $5,050

       $4,942Source       Lottery Source Lottery Source Lottery

       $4,942Budget 
Reference       

4000-4999: Books And Supplies
 Both restricted/unrestricted

Budget 
Reference

4000-4999: Books And Supplies
 Both restricted/unrestricted

Budget 
Reference

4000-4999: Books And Supplies
Both restricted/unrestricted

Amount       $ 5,100 Amount $5,202 Amount $ 5,306

       $ 5,100Source       Locally Defined Source Locally Defined Source Locally Defined

       $ 5,100Budget 
Reference       

4000-4999: Books And Supplies
Foundation/ Parcel Tax

Budget 
Reference

4000-4999: Books And Supplies
Foundation/ Parcel Tax

Budget 
Reference

4000-4999: Books And Supplies
Foundation/ Parcel Tax

Amount       $ 65 Amount $65 Amount $65

       $ 65

188

188



Page 45 of 97

Source       Federal Funds Source Federal Funds Source Federal Funds

       $ 65Budget 
Reference       

4000-4999: Books And Supplies
EL Supplies

Budget 
Reference

4000-4999: Books And Supplies
 EL Supplies

Budget 
Reference

4000-4999: Books And Supplies
EL Supplies

Amount       $ 4,650 Amount $4,750 Amount $ 4,845

       $ 4,650Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $ 4,650Budget 
Reference       

5800: Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures
 EPA -Optiman - Instructional Internet

Budget 
Reference

5800: Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures
 EPA -Optiman - Instructional Internet

Budget 
Reference

5900: Communications
 EPA -Optiman - Instructional Internet

Amount       $ 3,900 Amount $4,290 Amount $4,290

       $ 3,900Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $ 3,900Budget 
Reference       

5900: Communications
 Classroom Internet and computer 
maintenance for; classroom computers 
and internet access, online testing, 
classroom webpages.

Budget 
Reference

5900: Communications
 Classroom Internet and computer 
maintenance for; classroom computers 
and internet access, online testing, 
classroom webpages.

Budget 
Reference

5900: Communications
 Classroom Internet and computer 
maintenance for; classroom computers 
and internet access, online testing, 
classroom webpages.

Source       Other Source Source

Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted Budget 
Reference

Budget 
Reference

Action    2
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

189

189



Page 46 of 97

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

2.2 Make professional development opportunities 
available to all teachers and staff through on-site and off-
site trainings and workshops as needed. For certificated 
teachers, three in-service professional development days 
will be included in the annual school calendar. In addition, 
certificated teachers will meet weekly for one hour within 
their instructional day (PLC meeting) with a focus on 
professional growth.       

2.2 Make professional development opportunities 
available to all teachers and staff through on-site and off-
site trainings and workshops as needed. For certificated 
teachers, three in-service professional development days 
will be included in the annual school calendar. In 
addition, certificated teachers will meet weekly for one 
hour within their instructional day (PLC meeting) with a 
focus on professional growth.

2.2 Make professional development opportunities 
available to all teachers and staff through on-site and off-
site trainings and workshops as needed. For certificated 
teachers, three in-service professional development days 
will be included in the annual school calendar. In 
addition, certificated teachers will meet weekly for one 
hour within their instructional day (PLC meeting) with a 
focus on professional growth.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
Certificated teachers' costs included in 
Goal 1 Action 1.3, Classified staff costs 
included in Goal 1, Action  1.4; District 
Administration costs included in Goal 2 
Action 2.9

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Certificated teachers' costs included in 
Goal 1 Action 1.3, Classified staff costs 
included in Goal 1, Action  1.4; District 
Administration costs included in Goal 2 
Action 2.9

Budget 
Reference Certificated teachers' costs included in 

Goal 1 Action 1.3, Classified staff costs 
included in Goal 1, Action  1.4; District 
Administration costs included in Goal 2 
Action 2.9

Amount       $ 2,520 Amount $ 2,520 Amount $ 2,520

       $ 2,520Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $ 2,520Budget 
Reference       

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures
Conference and Travel

Budget 
Reference

5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures
Conference and Travel

Budget 
Reference

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures
Conference and Travel

Amount       $ 1,120 Amount $ 1,120 Amount $ 1,120

       $ 1,120Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $ 1,120Budget 
Reference       

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures
EPA - Conference and Travel

Budget 
Reference

5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures
EPA - Conference and Travel

Budget 
Reference

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures
EPA - Conference and Travel

Amount       $ 3,616 Amount 00 Amount 00

       $ 3,616Source       Other Source Other Source Other

190

190



Page 47 of 97

       $ 3,616Budget 
Reference       

5800: Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures
Educator Effectiveness Grant  
BTSA/Principal

Budget 
Reference carryover spent

Budget 
Reference

Amount       $ 500 Amount $ 500 Amount $ 500

       $ 500Source       Federal Funds Source Federal Funds Source Federal Funds

       $ 500Budget 
Reference       

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures
REAP - CPR Training all staff

Budget 
Reference

5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures
REAP - CPR Training all staff

Budget 
Reference

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures
REAP - CPR Training all staff

Action    3
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

2.3 Assess all students regularly to evaluate level of 
proficiency and determine individual learning needs for 
targeted intervention. Implement a Student Study Team 
to discuss and monitor progress of at-risk students.       

2.3 Assess all students regularly to evaluate level of 
proficiency and determine individual learning needs for 
targeted intervention. Implement a Student Study Team 
to discuss and monitor progress of at-risk students, 

2.3 Assess all students regularly to evaluate level of 
proficiency and determine individual learning needs for 
targeted intervention. Implement a Student Study Team 
to discuss and monitor progress of at-risk students, 

191

191



Page 48 of 97

including those who are English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income.

including those who are English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       Assessment costs included in Goal 1, 

Action 1.3  Teachers and Goal 2 Action 
2.9 Principal

Budget 
Reference Assessment costs included in Goal 1, 

Action 1.3  Teachers and Goal 2 Action 
2.9 Principal

Budget 
Reference Assessment costs included in Goal 1, 

Action 1.3  Teachers and Goal 2 Action 
2.9 Principal

Amount       Amount  Amount

Source       Locally Defined Source Locally Defined Source Locally Defined

Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
Costs included in Goal 1 Action 1.3 
Classified salaries (Spanish translator)

Budget 
Reference

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries
Costs included in Goal 1 Action 1.3 
Classified salaries (Spanish translator)

Budget 
Reference Costs included in Goal 1 Action 1.3 

Classified salaries (Spanish translator)

Amount       $ 5,000 Amount $ 5,100 Amount $ 5, 202

       $ 5,000Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $ 5,000Budget 
Reference       

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures
Aeries Maintenance and Hosting

Budget 
Reference

5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures
Aeries Maintenance and Hosting

Budget 
Reference

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures
Aeries Maintenance and Hosting

Amount       $ 2,000 Amount $ 2, 400 Amount $ 2, 400

       $ 2,000Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $ 2,000Budget 
Reference       

5800: Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures
 Maintenance of CALPADS Information

Budget 
Reference

5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures
 Maintenance of CALPADS Information

Budget 
Reference

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures
 Maintenance of CALPADS Information

Amount       $ 1,723 Amount $ 1,775 Amount $ 1,827

       $ 1,723Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $ 1,723Budget 
Reference       

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures
Contract MCOE School Nurse

Budget 
Reference

5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures
Contract MCOE School Nurse

Budget 
Reference

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures
Contract MCOE School Nurse

Action    4
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

192

192



Page 49 of 97

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

2.4 Place special education students in appropriate 
instructional programs and provide specialized services 
in accordance with Individualized Education Plan (IEP) 
using push-in/pull-out model. Monitor special education 
placement and services through IEP progress reports 
and annual IEP review to ensure students are making 
adequate yearly progress toward IEP goals.       

2.4 Place special education students in appropriate 
instructional programs and provide specialized services 
in accordance with Individualized Education Plan (IEP). 
Monitor special education placement and services 
through IEP progress reports and annual IEP review to 
ensure students are making adequate yearly progress 
toward IEP goals.

2.4 Place special education students in appropriate 
instructional programs and provide specialized services 
in accordance with Individualized Education Plan (IEP). 
Monitor special education placement and services 
through IEP progress reports and annual IEP review to 
ensure students are making adequate yearly progress 
toward IEP goals.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $2,510 Amount $ 2,510 Amount $ 2,510

       $2,510Source       Special Education Source Special Education Source Special Education

       $2,510Budget 
Reference       

5800: Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures
Federal Funds - Special Education 
Services - Mental Health Funds

Budget 
Reference

5800: Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures
Federal Funds - Special Education 
Services - Mental Health Funds

Budget 
Reference

5800: Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures
Federal Funds - Special Education 
Services - Mental Health Funds

Amount       $113,111 Amount $107,455 Amount $107,445

       $113,111Source       Special Education Source Special Education Source Special Education

       $113,111

193

193



Page 50 of 97

Budget 
Reference       

7000-7439: Other Outgo
Contribution from Unrestricted Funds - 
Excess Cost

Budget 
Reference

7000-7439: Other Outgo
Contribution from Unrestricted Funds - 
Excess Cost

Budget 
Reference

7000-7439: Other Outgo
Contribution from Unrestricted Funds - 
Excess Cost

Amount       $24,267 Amount $ 23,054 Amount $ 23,054

       $24,267Source       Special Education Source Special Education Source Special Education

       $24,267Budget 
Reference       

5800: Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures
 District Contribution from Unrestricted 
Funds

Budget 
Reference

5800: Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures
 District Contribution from Unrestricted 
Funds

Budget 
Reference

5800: Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures
 District Contribution from Unrestricted 
Funds

Amount       $ 60,000 Amount $ 60,000 Amount $ 60,000

       $ 60,000Source       Special Education Source Special Education Source Title I

       $ 60,000Budget 
Reference       

5800: Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures
District Contribution from Restricted 
Funds - Parcel Taxes

Budget 
Reference

5800: Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures
District Contribution from Restricted 
Funds - Parcel Taxes

Budget 
Reference

5800: Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures
District Contribution from Restricted 
Funds - Parcel Taxes

Amount       $20,364 Amount $ 18,364 Amount $ 18,364

       $20,364Source       Special Education Source Special Education Source Special Education

       $20,364Budget 
Reference       

5800: Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures
County Transfer - AB602

Budget 
Reference

5800: Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures
County Transfer - AB602

Budget 
Reference

5800: Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures
County Transfer - AB602

Amount       $ 6,316 Amount $ 6,316 Amount $ 6,316

       $ 6,316Source       Special Education Source Special Education Source Special Education

       $ 6,316Budget 
Reference       

5800: Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures
State Mental Health Services

Budget 
Reference

5800: Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures
State Mental Health Services

Budget 
Reference

5800: Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures
State Mental Health Services

Action    5
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

194

194



Page 51 of 97

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

2.5 Ensure all certificated teachers have an appropriate 
credential to instruct English language learners. This will 
result in 75% of EL students’ overall CELDT scores 
increasing by at least one performance level over a 12-
month period.       

2.5 Ensure all certificated teachers have an appropriate 
credential to instruct English language learners. This will 
result in 75% of EL students’ overall CELDT scores 
increasing by at least one performance level over a 12-
month period.

2.5 Ensure all certificated teachers have an appropriate 
credential to instruct English language learners. This will 
result in 75% of EL students’ overall CELDT scores 
increasing by at least one performance level over a 12-
month period.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
Costs included in Goal 2, Action 2.9 
Principal  and CBO (monitoring) and 
Goal 3, Action 2 (professional 
development)

Budget 
Reference Costs included in Goal 2, Action 2.9 

Principal  and CBO (monitoring) and Goal 
3, Action 2 (professional development)

Budget 
Reference Costs included in Goal 2, Action 2.9 

Principal  and CBO (monitoring) and Goal 
3, Action 2 (professional development)

Amount       $ 1,200 Amount $ 1,300 Amount $ 1, 350

       $ 1,200Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $ 1,200Budget 
Reference       

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries
CELDT TESTING

Budget 
Reference

2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries
CELDT TESTING

Budget 
Reference

2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries
CELDT TESTING

Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted Budget 
Reference

Budget 
Reference

Action    6
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

195

195



Page 52 of 97

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

2.6 Provide scholarships to low income students and 
foster youth for school programs, such as field trips.       

2.6 Provide scholarships to low income students and 
foster youth for school programs, such as field trips.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $ 1,000 Amount $1,000 Amount $ 1,000

       $ 1,000Source       Locally Defined Source Locally Defined Source Locally Defined

       $ 1,000Budget 
Reference       

5800: Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures
Student body fund raising

Budget 
Reference

5800: Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures
Student body fund raising 

Budget 
Reference

5800: Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures
Student body fund raising 

Action    7
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

196

196



Page 53 of 97

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

2.7 Maintain a Learning Center that provides instructional 
support for English language learners.
Provide emphasis on building academic vocabulary and 
skills in mathematics.
       

2.7 Maintain a Learning Center that provides instructional 
support for English language.
Provide emphasis on building academic vocabulary and 
skills in mathematics.

2.7 Maintain a Learning Center that provides instructional 
support for English language learners.
Provide emphasis on building academic vocabulary and 
skills in mathematics.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $ 12,469 Amount $ 12,718 Amount $ 12,973

       $ 12,469Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental 

       $ 12,469Budget 
Reference       

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries
Learning Center Aide

Budget 
Reference

2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries
Learning Center Aide

Budget 
Reference

2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries
Learning Center Aide

Amount       $ 6,900 Amount $ 7,797 Amount $ 8,811

       $ 6,900Source       Supplemental Source Supplemental Source Supplemental 

       $ 6,900Budget 
Reference       

3000-3999: Employee Benefits
Learning Center Aide

Budget 
Reference

3000-3999: Employee Benefits
Learning Center Aide

Budget 
Reference

3000-3999: Employee Benefits
Learning Center Aide

197

197



Page 54 of 97

Source       Other Source Other Source

Action    8
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

2.8 Distribute a survey to former Nicasio School students 
and a survey to their parents after the first semester of 
their freshman year at high school. Use data collected to 
modify instructional program appropriately.       

2.8 Distribute a survey to former Nicasio School students 
and a survey to their parents after the first semester of 
their freshman year at high school. Use data collected to 
modify instructional program appropriately.

2.8 Distribute a survey to former Nicasio School students 
and a survey to their parents after the first semester of 
their freshman year at high school. Use data collected to 
modify instructional program appropriately.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       Costs included in Goal 2 Action 2.9 

District Principal and Site 
Secretary/Office Manager

Budget 
Reference Costs included in Goal 2 Action 2.9 

District Principal and Site Secretary/Office 
Manager

Budget 
Reference Costs included in Goal 2 Action 2.9 

District Principal and Site Secretary/Office 
Manager

Action    9

198

198



Page 55 of 97

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

2.9 Maintain current configuration for school 
administration: .60 FTE principal; .80 FTE office 
manager; 11 days/year superintendent;

.40 FTE chief business official; .40 FTE accounting 
assistant; maintain office phone & internet 
communications and student information systems (SIS).
       

2.9 Maintain current configuration for school 
administration: .60 FTE principal; .80 FTE office 
manager; 11 days/year superintendent;

.40 FTE chief business official; .40 FTE accounting 
assistant; maintain office phone & internet 
communications and student information systems (SIS).

2.9 Maintain current configuration for school 
administration: .60 FTE principal; .80 FTE office 
manager; 11 days/year superintendent;

.40 FTE chief business official; .40 FTE accounting 
assistant; maintain office phone & internet 
communications and student information systems (SIS).

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $ 65,202 Amount 66,506 Amount $ 67,836

       $ 65,202Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $ 65,202Budget 
Reference       

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries

Budget 
Reference

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries

Budget 
Reference

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries

199

199



Page 56 of 97

.60 FTE  Principal .6 FTE Principal .6 FTE Principal

Amount       $ 13,676 Amount $ 15,454 Amount $ 17,463

       $ 13,676Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $ 13,676Budget 
Reference       

3000-3999: Employee Benefits
.60 FTE  Principal 

Budget 
Reference

3000-3999: Employee Benefits
.60 FTE Principal

Budget 
Reference

3000-3999: Employee Benefits
.60 FTE Principal

Amount       $ 12,000 Amount $ 12,000 Amount $ 12,000

       $ 12,000Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $ 12,000Budget 
Reference       

5800: Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures
MCOE Contract - Superintendent 
Services

Budget 
Reference

5800: Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures
MCOE Contract - Superintendent 
Services

Budget 
Reference

5800: Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures
MCOE Contract - Superintendent 
Services

Amount       $ 67,047 Amount $ 68,388 Amount $ 69,756

       $ 67,047Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $ 67,047Budget 
Reference       

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries
.80 FTE  Site Secretary/Office Manager

Budget 
Reference

2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries
.80 FTE  Site Secretary/Office Manager

Budget 
Reference

2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries
.80 FTE  Site Secretary/Office Manager

Amount       $ 20,581 Amount $ 22,021 Amount $ 23,563

       $ 20,581Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $ 20,581Budget 
Reference       

3000-3999: Employee Benefits
.80 FTE Site Secretary/ Office Manager

Budget 
Reference

2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries
80 FTE Site Secretary/ Office Manager

Budget 
Reference

3000-3999: Employee Benefits
80 FTE Site Secretary/ Office Manager

Amount       $ 85,536 Amount $ 87,247 Amount $ 88,992

       $ 85,536Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $ 85,536Budget 
Reference       

5800: Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures
.40 FTE CBO /.40 Business Office 
assistant

Budget 
Reference

5800: Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures
40 FTE CBO /.40 Business Office 
assistant

Budget 
Reference

5800: Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures
40 FTE CBO /.40 Business Office 
assistant

Source       LCFF Source Source

Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted Budget 
Reference

Budget 
Reference

Source       Other Source Source

Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted Budget 
Reference

Budget 
Reference

200

200



Page 57 of 97

Action    10
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

2.10 Update and maintain enrollment projections. 
Outreach to parents, community members, local 
newspaper and local preschools to identify potential 
incoming students. Review the inter-district transfer policy 
and determine the future of renewal requests as well as 
new requests within the context of fostering a stimulating 
learning environment for residents students while also 
balancing the budget.       

2.10 Update and maintain enrollment projections. 
Outreach to parents, community members, local 
newspaper and local preschools to identify potential 
incoming students. Review the inter-district transfer 
policy and determine the future of renewal requests as 
well as new requests within the context of fostering a 
stimulating learning environment for residents students 
while also balancing the budget.

2.10 Update and maintain enrollment projections. 
Outreach to parents, community members, local 
newspaper and local preschools to identify potential 
incoming students. Review the inter-district transfer 
policy and determine the future of renewal requests as 
well as new requests within the context of fostering a 
stimulating learning environment for residents students 
while also balancing the budget.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       Costs included in Goal 2 Action 2.9 

School Admin Principal and Office 
Manager and Goal 

Budget 
Reference Costs included in Goal 2 Action 2.9 

School Admin Principal and Office 
Manager and Goal 

Budget 
Reference Costs included in Goal 2 Action 2.9 

School Admin Principal and Office 
Manager and Goal 

201

201



Page 58 of 97

Amount       $ 6,000 Amount $ 6.000 Amount $ 6,000

       $ 6,000Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $ 6,000Budget 
Reference       

5800: Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures
Legal Services

Budget 
Reference

5800: Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures
Legal Services

Budget 
Reference

5800: Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures
Legal Services

Amount       $ 500 Amount $ 500 Amount $500

       $ 500Source       LCFF Source Source

       $ 500Budget 
Reference       

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures
Newspaper Notices

Budget 
Reference

5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures
Newspaper Notices

Budget 
Reference

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures
Newspaper Notices

Amount       $ Amount Amount

       $        $ 

Action    11
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

202

202



Page 59 of 97

2.11 Support multi-grade classrooms with 3.0 FTE 
teachers. Each of the three homeroom teachers (3.0 
FTE) will support three grade levels. During core 
instruction of math and language arts, a part-time 
classroom aide will provide additional support as need       

2.11 Support multi-grade classrooms with 3.0 FTE 
teachers. Each of the three homeroom teachers (3.0 
FTE) will support three grade levels. During core 
instruction of math and language arts, a part-time 
classroom aide will provide additional support as need

2.11 Support multi-grade classrooms with 3.0 FTE 
teachers. Each of the three homeroom teachers (3.0 
FTE) will support three grade levels. During core 
instruction of math and language arts, a part-time 
classroom aide will provide additional support as need

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       Costs included in Goal 1 Action 1.3 

Certificated Teachers and Action 1.4 
Classified Staff

Budget 
Reference Costs included in Goal 1 Action 1.3 

Certificated Teachers and Action 1.4 
Classified Staff

Budget 
Reference Costs included in Goal 1 Action 1.3 

Certificated Teachers and Action 1.4 
Classified Staff

Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted Budget 
Reference

Budget 
Reference

Source       Other Source Source

Action    12
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

203

203



Page 60 of 97

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

2.12 Enhance student learning by providing a broad 
course of study beyond state required subject areas and 
by providing teachers with sufficient planning periods to 
prepare for instruction in multi-grade, self-contained 
classrooms. Offer enrichment programs to students in 
grades TK-8: Spanish, Art, Performing Arts and PE.       

2.12 Enhance student learning by providing a broad 
course of study beyond state required subject areas and 
by providing teachers with sufficient planning periods to 
prepare for instruction in multi-grade, self-contained 
classrooms. Offer enrichment programs to students in 
grades TK-8: Spanish, Art, Performing Arts and PE.

2.12 Enhance student learning by providing a broad 
course of study beyond state required subject areas and 
by providing teachers with sufficient planning periods to 
prepare for instruction in multi-grade, self-contained 
classrooms. Offer enrichment programs to students in 
grades TK-8: Spanish, Art, Performing Arts and PE.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries
Costs included in Goal 1 Action 1.4 
Classified Staff Aides and Professional 
Experts 

Budget 
Reference Costs included in Goal 1 Action 1.4 

Classified Staff Aides and Professional 
Experts 

Budget 
Reference Costs included in Goal 1 Action 1.4 

Classified Staff Aides and Professional 
Experts 

Amount       $ 1,120 Amount $ 1,120 Amount $ 1,120

       $ 1,120Source       Locally Defined Source Locally Defined Source Locally Defined

       $ 1,120Budget 
Reference       

5800: Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures
Parcel Tax - Human Development

Budget 
Reference

5800: Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures
Parcel Tax - Human Development

Budget 
Reference

5800: Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures
Parcel Tax - Human Development

Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted Budget 
Reference

Budget 
Reference

Action    13
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

204

204



Page 61 of 97

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

2.13 The district will investigate and pilot a school-wide 
social emotional learning program to support student 
interaction and enhance student engagement.       

2.13 The district will implement a school-wide social 
emotional learning program to support student interaction 
and enhance student engagement.

2.13 The district will implement a school-wide social 
emotional learning program to support student interaction 
and enhance student engagement.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $ 1,500 Amount $ 1,500 Amount $ 1,500

       $ 1,500Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $ 1,500Budget 
Reference       

5800: Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures
YMCA - Restorative Justice

Budget 
Reference

5800: Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures
YMCA - Restorative Justice

Budget 
Reference

5800: Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures
YMCA - Restorative Justice

205

205



Page 62 of 97

Goals, Actions, & Services
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed.
----------

New
  

Modified
  

Unchanged

----------

Goal 3 Ensure all parents are active participants in the school community       

----------
State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

COE       9 10
LOCAL   

----------
Identified Need • Parent involvement at the school level from both English- and Spanish-speaking families

• Maintain and improve school-to-home communications
• Employ English/Spanish translator and parent liaison

----------
EXPECTED ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

Metric(s): Parent Input (Annual 
Survey of Parents/Guardians, 
Back-to-School Questionnaire 
(identify preferred 
communication methods), 
Parent Participation (attendance 
at school events, donations 
(time/money) to classrooms, 
field trips), Volunteer Records 
(Foundation, Parent Club, Field 
Trip Drivers, Visitor Sign-in Log)

       

a) On annual parent survey 
(April 2017), a total of 42 parents 
participated (from 33 families 
total).

Of the 42 participants, 8 (19%) 
were from Spanish-speaking 
households, which is a close 
representation of the overall 
percentage of Spanish-speaking 
households school-wide (21%).

90 % of parents agree that 
communication between the 
school office and home is 
sufficient. 79% of them find the 
most value in email 
correspondence. 68% consider 
the online Parent Portal an 

a) Students’ families, both 
English-Speaking and Spanish-
speaking, will be well informed 
about the school’s news and 
events and about their children’s 
progress in school; this will be 
demonstrated by at least 85% of 
surveyed parents indicating that 
communication from the school 
is effective.

a) Students’ families, both 
English-Speaking and Spanish-
speaking, will be well informed 
about the school’s news and 
events and about their children’s 
progress in school; this will be 
demonstrated by at least 85% of 
surveyed parents indicating that 
communication from the school 
is effective.

a) Students’ families, both 
English-Speaking and Spanish-
speaking, will be well informed 
about the school’s news and 
events and about their children’s 
progress in school; this will be 
demonstrated by at least 85% of 
surveyed parents indicating that 
communication from the school 
is effective.

206

206



Page 63 of 97

effective forum for weekly 
communications.

81% of parents consider 
communication between 
teachers and parents sufficient. 
With that said, 93%-95% of the 
parents consider the content 
provided by teachers on 
progress reports and report 
cards as valuable.

Communication from school-
related organizations are viewed 
as sufficient as follows: Parent 
Club (80%), Nicasio School 
Foundation (74%), and School 
Board (45%).

PLANNED ACTIONS / SERVICES
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed.

Action    1
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

207

207



Page 64 of 97

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

3.1 Ensure regular, consistent and clear communication 
between school and the home for both English-speaking 
and Spanish-speaking households.       

3.1 Ensure regular, consistent and clear communication 
between school and the home for both English-speaking 
and Spanish-speaking households.

3.1 Ensure regular, consistent and clear communication 
between school and the home for both English-speaking 
and Spanish-speaking households.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       Costs included in Goal 2 Action 2.9  

School Site Administrative salaries and 
Goal 1 Action 1.4 Classified staff 
(translator).

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Costs included in Goal 2 Action 2.9  
School Site Administrative salaries and 
Goal 1 Action 1.4 Classified staff 
(translator).

Budget 
Reference Costs included in Goal 2 Action 2.9  

School Site Administrative salaries and 
Goal 1 Action 1.4 Classified staff 
(translator).

Amount       $ 2,000 Amount $ 2,200 Amount $ 2,420

       $ 2,000Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $ 2,000Budget 
Reference       

5900: Communications
Internet - Office

Budget 
Reference

5900: Communications
Internet - Office

Budget 
Reference

5900: Communications
Internet - Office

Amount       $ 950 Amount $ 975 Amount $ 1,000

       $ 950Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $ 950Budget 
Reference       

5900: Communications
Telephone Service

Budget 
Reference

5900: Communications
Telephone Service

Budget 
Reference

5900: Communications
Telephone Service

Amount       $ 1,200 Amount $ 1,200 Amount $ 1,200

       $ 1,200Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $ 1,200Budget 
Reference       

5900: Communications
Postage Permit

Budget 
Reference

5900: Communications
Postage Permit

Budget 
Reference

5900: Communications
Postage Permit

Amount       $ 3,900 Amount $ 4,290 Amount $ 4,290

       $ 3,900Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $ 3,900Budget 
Reference       

5900: Communications
Internet Consultant/Webpage 
Maintenance

Budget 
Reference

5900: Communications
Internet Consultant/Webpage 
Maintenance

Budget 
Reference

5900: Communications
Internet Consultant/Webpage 
Maintenance

208

208



Page 65 of 97

Source       Other Source Lottery Source

Action    2
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

3.2 Ensure regular, consistent and clear communication 
between the school board and home by including the 
board agenda and approved minutes on a monthly basis 
in the Parent Portal or other routine school-to-home 
communication system.       

3.2 Ensure regular, consistent and clear communication 
between the school board and home by including the 
board agenda and approved minutes on a monthly basis 
in the Parent Portal or other routine school-to-home 
communication system.

3.2 Ensure regular, consistent and clear communication 
between the school board and home by including the 
board agenda and approved minutes on a monthly basis 
in the Parent Portal or other routine school-to-home 
communication system.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

Budget 
Reference       

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries

Budget 
Reference

2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries
Costs included in Goal 2 Action 2.9  
Administrative Office Manager 

Budget 
Reference

2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries
Costs included in Goal 2 Action 2.9  
Administrative Office Manager 

209

209



Page 66 of 97

Costs included in Goal 2 Action 2.9  
Administrative Office Manager 

Amount       Amount $2,000 Amount

Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source

Budget 
Reference       Costs included in Goal 3  Action 3.1  

Internet Access Office, Telephones, 
Internet/Webpage Maintenance

Budget 
Reference Costs included in Goal 3  Action 3.1  

Internet Access Office, Telephones, 
Internet/Webpage Maintenance

Budget 
Reference Costs included in Goal 3  Action 3.1  

Internet Access Office, Telephones, 
Internet/Webpage Maintenance

Amount       Amount  Amount

Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source

Action    3
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

3.3 Through a Back-to-School questionnaire and an 
annual parent survey, identify the preferred 

3.3 Through a Back-to-School questionnaire and an 
annual parent survey, identify the preferred 

3.3 Through a Back-to-School questionnaire and an 
annual parent survey, identify the preferred 

210

210



Page 67 of 97

communication methods of each parent/guardian. Mid-
way through the year, distribute an annual survey to 
identify communication methods that are effective and 
where communications can improve.       

communication methods of each parent/guardian. Mid-
way through the year, distribute an annual survey to 
identify communication methods that are effective and 
where communications can improve.

communication methods of each parent/guardian. Mid-
way through the year, distribute an annual survey to 
identify communication methods that are effective and 
where communications can improve.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       Costs included in Goal 2 Action 2.9  

School Administration Principal and 
Office Manager

Budget 
Reference Costs included in Goal 2, Action #1, 

School Site Administrative salaries

Budget 
Reference Costs included in Goal 2, Action #1, 

School Site Administrative salaries

Source       Other Source Other Source

Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted Budget 
Reference

Budget 
Reference

Action    4
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] English Learners

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

211

211



Page 68 of 97

3.4 Employ a part-time English/Spanish translator to 
serve as school-to- home communicator (oral and 
written) and parent liaison. Spanish translation services 
will be provided to 100% of Spanish-speaking 
households, both orally and in writing. Student reports, 
student records, school documents and forms, and 
school news will be provided in both English and Spanish 
languages.       

3.4 Employ a part-time English/Spanish translator to 
serve as school-to- home communicator (oral and 
written) and parent liaison. Spanish translation services 
will be provided to 100% of Spanish-speaking 
households, both orally and in writing. Student reports, 
student records, school documents and forms, and 
school news will be provided in both English and Spanish 
languages.

3.4 Employ a part-time English/Spanish translator to 
serve as school-to- home communicator (oral and 
written) and parent liaison. Spanish translation services 
will be provided to 100% of Spanish-speaking 
households, both orally and in writing. Student reports, 
student records, school documents and forms, and 
school news will be provided in both English and Spanish 
languages.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Source       Locally Defined Source Locally Defined Source

Budget 
Reference       

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries
Costs included in Goal 1 Action 1.4 
Classified Staff (Translator) 

Budget 
Reference

2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries
Costs included in Goal 1 Action 1.4 
Classified Staff (Translator) 

Budget 
Reference Costs included in Goal 1 Action 1.4 

Classified Staff (Translator) 

Source       LCFF Source Governors CTE Initiative: California 
Partnership Academies

Source

Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
Costs included in Goal 2 Action 2.9 
School Administration Principal and 
Office Manager

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Costs included in Goal 2 Action 2.9 
School Administration Principal and Office 
Manager

Budget 
Reference Costs included in Goal 2 Action 2.9 

School Administration Principal and 
Office Manager

Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
Costs included in Goal 3 Action 3. 
Internet, Telephone and Internet 
Management/Webpage Maintenance

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Costs included in Goal 3 Action 3. 
Internet, Telephone and Internet 
Management/Webpage Maintenance

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Costs included in Goal 3 Action 3. 
Internet, Telephone and Internet 
Management/Webpage Maintenance

Action    5
OR

ACTIONS/SERVICES

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
Amount       Amount  Amount

Action    6
OR

ACTIONS/SERVICES

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
Amount        Amount Amount

212

212



Page 70 of 97

Goals, Actions, & Services
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed.
----------

New
  

Modified
  

Unchanged

----------

Goal 4 Ensure all facilities are up-to-date, functional and safe       

----------
State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

COE       9 10
LOCAL   

----------
Identified Need • Maintain facilities in good repair

• Deferred maintenance schedule

----------
EXPECTED ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

Metric: Annual Facilities 
Inspection Report, 
Incidents/Injury Reports       

In 2016-17:
a) Zero (0) injuries were 
reported due to safety issues 
related to the campus or 
facilities.

b) The Annual Facilities 
Inspection Report completed in 
April 2017 indicated an 
"exemplary" status with an 
overall rating of 100%.

a) Students will be able to learn 
and play on a clean and safe 
campus, resulting in 0% injuries 
related to poor condition or 
maintenance of the facilities.

b) The annual Facilities 
Inspection Report will indicate 
that the campus facilities are in 
“exemplary” status.

c) Any corrective actions 
recommended by the MSIA 
facility risk management report 
will be remedied within one fiscal 
year based on level of priority.

a) Students will be able to learn 
and play on a clean and safe 
campus, resulting in 0% injuries 
related to poor condition or 
maintenance of the facilities.

b) The annual Facilities 
Inspection Report will indicate 
that the campus facilities are in 
“exemplary” status.

c) Any corrective actions 
recommended by the MSIA 
facility risk management report 
will be remedied within one fiscal 
year based on level of priority.

a) Students will be able to learn 
and play on a clean and safe 
campus, resulting in 0% injuries 
related to poor condition or 
maintenance of the facilities.

b) The annual Facilities 
Inspection Report will indicate 
that the campus facilities are in 
“exemplary” status.

c) Any corrective actions 
recommended by the MSIA 
facility risk management report 
will be remedied within one fiscal 
year based on level of priority.

213

213



Page 71 of 97

PLANNED ACTIONS / SERVICES
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed.

Action    1
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

4.1 Conduct an annual facilities inspection in 
December/January and complete related report; use data 
collected to prepare the section for facilities on the 
School Accountability Report Card (SARC). Maintain 
membership in Marin Schools Insurance Authority JPA.       

4.1 Conduct an annual facilities inspection in 
December/January and complete related report; use data 
collected to prepare the section for facilities on the 
School Accountability Report Card (SARC). Maintain 
membership in Marin Schools Insurance Authority JPA.

4.1 Conduct an annual facilities inspection in 
December/January and complete related report; use data 
collected to prepare the section for facilities on the 
School Accountability Report Card (SARC). Maintain 
membership in Marin Schools Insurance Authority JPA.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $ 5,792 Amount $6,081 Amount $ 6,081

       $ 5,792 Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $ 5,792 

214

214



Page 72 of 97

Budget 
Reference       

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures
Property & Liability Insurance 

Budget 
Reference

5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures
Property & Liability Insurance 

Budget 
Reference

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures
Property & Liability Insurance 

Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted
Costs included in Goal 2 Action 2.9 
Administrator salaries, Principal, Office 
Manager and CBO

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Costs included in Goal 2 Action 2.9 
Administrator salaries, Principal, Office 
Manager and CBO

Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted
Costs included in Goal 2 Action 2.9 
Administrator salaries, Principal, Office 
Manager and CBO

Amount       $ 195 Amount $ 195 Amount $ 195

       $ 195Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source Governors CTE Initiative: California 
Partnership Academies

       $ 195Budget 
Reference       

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures
Fee for Document Tracking Services - 
SARC

Budget 
Reference

5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures
Fee for Document Tracking Services - 
SARC

Budget 
Reference

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures
Fee for Document Tracking Services - 
SARC

Action    2
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

215

215



Page 73 of 97

4.2 Maintain communication system between 
administration and custodian for work order requests 
from teachers and staff.       

4.2 Maintain communication system between 
administration and custodian for work order requests 
from teachers and staff.

4.2 Maintain communication system between 
administration and custodian for work order requests 
from teachers and staff.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $ 32,034 Amount $32,675 Amount $ 33,328

       $ 32,034Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $ 32,034Budget 
Reference       

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries
Custodian Salary

Budget 
Reference

2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries
Custodian Salary 

Budget 
Reference

2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries
Custodian Salary 

Amount       $8,700 Amount $10,875 Amount $ 11,973

       $8,700Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $8,700Budget 
Reference       

4000-4999: Books And Supplies
M&O supplies 

Budget 
Reference

4000-4999: Books And Supplies
M&O supplies 

Budget 
Reference

4000-4999: Books And Supplies
M & O Supplies

Amount       $ 6,300 Amount $6,615 Amount $ 6,945

       $ 6,300Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $ 6,300Budget 
Reference       

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures
Repairs 

Budget 
Reference

5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures
Repairs 

Budget 
Reference

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures
Repairs

Amount       $ 8,953 Amount $ 9,055 Amount $ 9,189

       $ 8,953Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $ 8,953Budget 
Reference       

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures
Health & Safety licenses, Equipment 
Repair

Budget 
Reference

5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures
Health & Safety Licenses, Equipment 
Repair

Budget 
Reference

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures
Health & Safety Licenses, Equipment 
Repair

Amount       $ 23,293 Amount $24,457 Amount $ 25,681

       $ 23,293Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $ 23,293Budget 
Reference       

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures
Utilities 

Budget 
Reference

5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures
Utilities 

Budget 
Reference

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures
Utilities

Amount       $10,000 Amount $10,000 Amount $ 10,000

       $10,000

216

216



Page 74 of 97

Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $10,000Budget 
Reference       

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures
Fund 14 Repairs 

Budget 
Reference

5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures
Fund 14 Repairs

Budget 
Reference

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures
Fund 14 Repairs

Amount       $ 8,360 Amount $ 8,438 Amount $ 8,518

       $ 8,360Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $ 8,360Budget 
Reference       

3000-3999: Employee Benefits
Custodian  Benefits

Budget 
Reference

3000-3999: Employee Benefits
Custodian  Benefits

Budget 
Reference

3000-3999: Employee Benefits
Custodian  Benefits

Action    3
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

4.3 Maintain and monitor a deferred maintenance 
schedule.       

4.3 Maintain and monitor a deferred maintenance 
schedule.

4.3 Maintain and monitor a deferred maintenance 
schedule.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES

217

217



Page 75 of 97

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       Included in staff costs – Goal 2 Action 

2.9 Administration, and Goal 4 Action 4.2 
Custodian

Budget 
Reference Included in staff costs – Goal 2, Action 2.9 

Administration, and Goal 4 Action 4.2 
Custodian

Budget 
Reference Included in staff costs – Goal 2, Action 

2.9 Administration, and Goal 4 Action 4.2 
Custodian

Action    4
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

4.4 Maintain existing potable water system. Continue to 
pursue viable options for long-term potable water system 
and availability of potable water.       

4.4 Maintain existing potable water system. Continue to 
pursue viable options for long-term potable water system 
and availability of potable water.

4.4 Maintain existing potable water system. Continue to 
pursue viable options for long-term potable water system 
and availability of potable water.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $12,500 Amount $13,125 Amount $ 13,781

       $12,500Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

218

218



Page 76 of 97

       $12,500Budget 
Reference       

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures
Water Testing/ system monitoring & 
Supplies

Budget 
Reference

5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures
Water Testing/ system monitoring & 
Supplies

Budget 
Reference

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures
Water Testing/ system monitoring & 
Supplies

Amount       $ 1,000 Amount $2, 500 Amount $ 2,750

       $ 1,000Source       LCFF Source LCFF Source LCFF

       $ 1,000Budget 
Reference       

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures
Water System Repairs

Budget 
Reference

5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures
Water System Repairs

Budget 
Reference

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures
Water System Repairs

Source       Other Source Other Source

Budget 
Reference       

0000: Unrestricted Budget 
Reference

0000: Unrestricted Budget 
Reference

Action    5
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  [Specific Student Group(s)] 

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

219

219



Page 77 of 97

4.5 Review facility risk management report provided by 
Keenan Insurance to identify and implement corrective 
action when necessary.       

4.5 Review facility risk management report provided by 
Keenan Insurance to identify and implement corrective 
action when necessary.

4.5 Review facility risk management report provided by 
Keenan Insurance to identify and implement corrective 
action when necessary.

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Budget 
Reference       Costs included in Goal 2 Action 2.9  

Principal and CBO and Goal 4 Action 4.2 
Custodial staff.

Budget 
Reference Costs included in Goal 2 Action 2.9  

Principal and CBO and Goal 4 Action 4.2 
Custodial staff.

Budget 
Reference Costs included in Goal 2 Action 2.9  

Principal and CBO and Goal 4 Action 4.2 
Custodial staff.

220

220



Page 78 of 97

Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Pupils
LCAP Year 2017–18 2018–19 2019–20

----------
Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds: $14,021 Percentage to Increase or Improve Services: 3.76%
----------
Describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage identified above, either qualitatively or 
quantitatively, as compared to services provided for all students in the LCAP year. 

Identify each action/service being funded and provided on a schoolwide or LEA-wide basis. Include the required descriptions supporting each schoolwide or LEA-
wide use of funds (see instructions).
----------
Nicasio School District’s supplemental grant is estimated at $14,021. These funds are being expended to support the Learning Center, the principal purpose of 
which is to serve English Language Learners (ELL). The Learning Center services relate directly to Goal 2 (Action 2.7). The Learning Center serves all ELL 
students within the regular school day, providing them with additional instruction to develop their English language skills under the guidance of highly trained and 
qualified instructors.  The district uses the Supplemental Grant in this school-wide program because experience has shown this program, initially implemented in 
the 2013-14 school year is proving effective in assisting English Learners in particular to meet academic growth. This supplemental grant also allows for push-in 
support for English Learners during their core academic instruction.

Nicasio School District is providing services for its students of need by a minimum of 3.76% more than is provided to all of the District's students.  When the MPP 
is measured from a service perspective, the district provides 3 FTE  certificated teachers and .375 FTE Instructional Aide for all students for a total of 3.375 FTE 
Core Instructional Staff.  The Learning Center provides an additional .375 FTE or a 12.5% increase in services, far in excess of the required MPP.

-------
-------

221

221



Revised Local Control and Accountability Plan and Annual Update Template 
Instructions

Addendum
The Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) and Annual Update Template documents and 
communicates local educational agencies’ (LEAs) actions and expenditures to support student outcomes and 
overall performance. For school districts and county offices of education, the LCAP is a three-year plan which 
is reviewed and updated in the second and third years of the plan.  Charter schools may complete the LCAP to 
align with the term of the charter school’s budget, typically one year, which is submitted to the school’s 
authorizer. The LCAP and Annual Update Template must be completed by all LEAs each year.

For school districts, the LCAP must describe, for the school district and each school within the district, goals 
and specific actions to achieve those goals for all students and each student group identified by the Local 
Control Funding Formula (LCFF) (ethnic, socioeconomically disadvantaged, English learners, foster youth, 
pupils with disabilities, and homeless youth), for each of the state priorities and any locally identified priorities.

For county offices of education, the LCAP must describe, for each county office of education-operated school 
and program, goals and specific actions to achieve those goals for all students and each LCFF student group 
funded through the county office of education (students attending juvenile court schools, on probation or 
parole, or expelled under certain conditions) for each of the state priorities and any locally identified priorities. 
School districts and county offices of education may additionally coordinate and describe in their LCAPs 
services funded by a school district that are provided to students attending county-operated schools and 
programs, including special education programs. 

If a county superintendent of schools has jurisdiction over a single school district, the county board of 
education and the governing board of the school district may adopt and file for review and approval a single 
LCAP consistent with the requirements in Education Code (EC) sections 52060, 52062, 52066, 52068, and 
52070.  The LCAP must clearly articulate to which entity’s budget (school district or county superintendent of 
schools) all budgeted and actual expenditures are aligned. 

Charter schools must describe goals and specific actions to achieve those goals for all students and each 
LCFF subgroup of students including students with disabilities and homeless youth, for each of the state 
priorities that apply for the grade levels served or the nature of the program operated by the charter school, 
and any locally identified priorities. For charter schools, the inclusion and description of goals for state priorities 
in the LCAP may be modified to meet the grade levels served and the nature of the programs provided, 
including modifications to reflect only the statutory requirements explicitly applicable to charter schools in the 
Education Code. Changes in LCAP goals and actions/services for charter schools that result from the annual 
update process do not necessarily constitute a material revision to the school’s charter petition.

222

222



For questions related to specific sections of the template, please see instructions below:

Instructions: Linked Table of Contents

Plan Summary
Annual Update
Stakeholder Engagement
Goals, Actions, and Services
Planned Actions/Services
Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students

For additional questions or technical assistance related to completion of the LCAP template, please contact the 
local county office of education, or the CDE’s Local Agency Systems Support Office at: 916-319-0809 or by 
email at: lcff@cde.ca.gov.

Plan Summary
The LCAP is intended to reflect an LEA’s annual goals, actions, services and expenditures within a fixed three-
year planning cycle. LEAs must include a plan summary for the LCAP each year. 
When developing the LCAP, mark the appropriate LCAP year, and address the prompts provided in these 
sections.  When developing the LCAP in year 2 or year 3, mark the appropriate LCAP year and replace the 
previous summary information with information relevant to the current year LCAP.
In this section, briefly address the prompts provided. These prompts are not limits.  LEAs may include 
information regarding local program(s), community demographics, and the overall vision of the LEA.  LEAs 
may also attach documents (e.g., the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics data reports) if desired and/or include charts 
illustrating goals, planned outcomes, actual outcomes, or related planned and actual expenditures.
An LEA may use an alternative format for the plan summary as long as it includes the information specified in 
each prompt and the budget summary table.
The reference to LCFF Evaluation Rubrics means the evaluation rubrics adopted by the State Board of 
Education under EC Section 52064.5.  

Budget Summary
The LEA must complete the LCAP Budget Summary table as follows:

 Total LEA General Fund Budget Expenditures for the LCAP Year: This amount is the LEA’s 
total budgeted General Fund expenditures for the LCAP year. The LCAP year means the fiscal year 
for which an LCAP is adopted or updated by July 1. The General Fund is the main operating fund of 
the LEA and accounts for all activities not accounted for in another fund. All activities are reported in 
the General Fund unless there is a compelling reason to account for an activity in another fund. For 
further information please refer to the California School Accounting Manual 
(http://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/ac/sa/). (Note: For some charter schools that follow governmental fund 
accounting, this amount is the total budgeted expenditures in the Charter Schools Special Revenue 
Fund. For charter schools that follow the not-for-profit accounting model, this amount is total 
budgeted expenses, such as those budgeted in the Charter Schools Enterprise Fund.)

 Total Funds Budgeted for Planned Actions/Services to Meet the Goals in the LCAP for the 
LCAP Year: This amount is the total of the budgeted expenditures associated with the 
actions/services included for the LCAP year from all sources of funds, as reflected in the LCAP.  To 
the extent actions/services and/or expenditures are listed in the LCAP under more than one goal, 
the expenditures should be counted only once.

 Description of any use(s) of the General Fund Budget Expenditures specified above for the 
LCAP year not included in the LCAP: Briefly describe expenditures included in total General 
Fund Expenditures that are not included in the total funds budgeted for planned actions/services for 

223

223

http://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/ac/sa/


the LCAP year. (Note: The total funds budgeted for planned actions/services may include funds 
other than general fund expenditures.)

 Total Projected LCFF Revenues for LCAP Year: This amount is the total amount of LCFF funding 
the LEA estimates it will receive pursuant to EC sections 42238.02 (for school districts and charter 
schools) and 2574 (for county offices of education), as implemented by EC sections 42238.03 and 
2575 for the LCAP year respectively.  

Annual Update
The planned goals, expected outcomes, actions/services, and budgeted expenditures must be copied verbatim 
from the previous year’s* approved LCAP. Minor typographical errors may be corrected.  

* For example, for LCAP year 2017/18 of the 2017/18 – 2019/20 LCAP, review the goals in the 2016/17 
LCAP. Moving forward, review the goals from the most recent LCAP year. For example, LCAP year 
2020/21 will review goals from the 2019/20 LCAP year, which is the last year of the 2017/18 – 2019/20 
LCAP. 
Annual Measurable Outcomes

For each goal in the prior year, identify and review the actual measurable outcomes as compared to 
the expected annual measurable outcomes identified in the prior year for the goal. 

Actions/Services
Identify the planned Actions/Services and the budgeted expenditures to implement these actions 
toward achieving the described goal. Identify the actual actions/services implemented to meet the 
described goal and the estimated actual annual expenditures to implement the actions/services. As 
applicable, identify any changes to the students or student groups served, or to the planned location of 
the actions/services provided.

Analysis
Using actual annual measurable outcome data, including data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, 
analyze whether the planned actions/services were effective in achieving the goal. Respond to the 
prompts as instructed.

 Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 
Include a discussion of relevant challenges and successes experienced with the implementation 
process. 

 Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as 
measured by the LEA.

 Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
Minor variances in expenditures or a dollar-for-dollar accounting is not required.

 Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to 
achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the data provided in the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.  Identify where those changes can be found in the LCAP.

Stakeholder Engagement
Meaningful engagement of parents, students, and other stakeholders, including those representing the student 
groups identified by LCFF, is critical to the development of the LCAP and the budget process. Education Code 
identifies the minimum consultation requirements for school districts and county offices of education as 
consulting with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, local bargaining units of the school 
district, parents, and pupils in developing the LCAP. Education Code requires charter schools to consult with 
teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, parents, and pupils in developing the LCAP. In 
addition, Education Code Section 48985 specifies the requirements for the translation of notices, reports, 
statements, or records sent to a parent or guardian.

224

224



The LCAP should be shared with, and LEAs should request input from, school site-level advisory groups, as 
applicable (e.g., school site councils, English Learner Advisory Councils, student advisory groups, etc.), to 
facilitate alignment between school-site and district-level goals and actions. An LEA may incorporate or 
reference actions described in other plans that are being undertaken to meet specific goals.  

Instructions: The stakeholder engagement process is an ongoing, annual process. The requirements for 
this section are the same for each year of a three-year LCAP. When developing the LCAP, mark the 
appropriate LCAP year, and describe the stakeholder engagement process used to develop the LCAP 
and Annual Update.  When developing the LCAP in year 2 or year 3, mark the appropriate LCAP year 
and replace the previous stakeholder narrative(s) and describe the stakeholder engagement process 
used to develop the current year LCAP and Annual Update.

School districts and county offices of education: Describe the process used to consult with the 
Parent Advisory Committee, the English Learner Parent Advisory Committee, parents, students, 
school personnel, the LEA’s local bargaining units, and the community to inform the development 
of the LCAP and the annual review and analysis for the indicated LCAP year.
Charter schools: Describe the process used to consult with teachers, principals, administrators, 
other school personnel, parents, and students to inform the development of the LCAP and the 
annual review and analysis for the indicated LCAP year. 

Describe how the consultation process impacted the development of the LCAP and annual update for the 
indicated LCAP year, including the goals, actions, services, and expenditures.

Goals, Actions, and Services
LEAs must include a description of the annual goals, for all students and each LCFF identified group of 
students, to be achieved for each state priority as applicable to type of LEA. An LEA may also include 
additional local priorities. This section shall also include a description of the specific planned actions an LEA 
will take to meet the identified goals, and a description of the expenditures required to implement the specific 
actions.

School districts and county offices of education: The LCAP is a three-year plan, which is reviewed 
and updated annually, as required.  
Charter schools: The number of years addressed in the LCAP may align with the term of the charter 
schools budget, typically one year, which is submitted to the school’s authorizer. If year 2 and/or year 3 
is not applicable, charter schools must specify as such.  

New, Modified, Unchanged
As part of the LCAP development process, which includes the annual update and stakeholder 
engagement, indicate if the goal, identified need, related state and/or local priorities, and/or expected 
annual measurable outcomes for the current LCAP year or future LCAP years are modified or 
unchanged from the previous year’s LCAP; or, specify if the goal is new.

Goal
State the goal. LEAs may number the goals using the “Goal #” box for ease of reference. A goal is a 
broad statement that describes the desired result to which all actions/services are directed. A goal 
answers the question: What is the LEA seeking to achieve?  

Related State and/or Local Priorities
Identify the state and/or local priorities addressed by the goal by placing a check mark next to the 
applicable priority or priorities. The LCAP must include goals that address each of the state priorities, 
as applicable to the type of LEA, and any additional local priorities; however, one goal may address 
multiple priorities. (Link to State Priorities)

Identified Need

225

225



Describe the needs that led to establishing the goal.  The identified needs may be based on 
quantitative or qualitative information, including, but not limited to, results of the annual update process 
or performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.

Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes
For each LCAP year, identify the metric(s) or indicator(s) that the LEA will use to track progress toward 
the expected outcomes. LEAs may identify metrics for specific student groups. Include in the baseline 
column the most recent data associated with this metric or indicator available at the time of adoption of 
the LCAP for the first year of the three-year plan. The most recent data associated with a metric or 
indicator includes data as reported in the annual update of the LCAP year immediately preceding the 
three-year plan, as applicable. The baseline data shall remain unchanged throughout the three-year 
LCAP. In the subsequent year columns, identify the progress to be made in each year of the three-year 
cycle of the LCAP.  Consider how expected outcomes in any given year are related to the expected 
outcomes for subsequent years.
The metrics may be quantitative or qualitative, but at minimum an LEA must use the applicable required 
metrics for the related state priorities, in each LCAP year as applicable to the type of LEA.  For the 
student engagement priority metrics, as applicable, LEAs must calculate the rates as described in the 
LCAP Template Appendix, sections (a) through (d).

Planned Actions/Services

For each action/service, the LEA must complete either the section “For Actions/Services not 
contributing to meeting Increased or Improved Services Requirement” or the section “For 
Actions/Services Contributing to Meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement.”  The LEA 
shall not complete both sections for a single action.

For Actions/Services Not Contributing to Meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement
Students to be Served
The “Students to be Served” box is to be completed for all actions/services except for those which are 
included by the LEA as contributing to meeting the requirement to increase or improve services for 
unduplicated students. Indicate in this box which students will benefit from the actions/services by 
checking “All”, “Students with Disabilities”, or “Specific Student Group(s)”. If “Specific Student Group(s)” 
is checked, identify the specific student group(s) as appropriate.
Location(s)
Identify the location where the action/services will be provided. If the services are provided to all 
schools within the LEA, the LEA must indicate “All Schools”. If the services are provided to specific 
schools within the LEA or specific grade spans only, the LEA must mark “Specific Schools” or “Specific 
Grade Spans”. Identify the individual school or a subset of schools or grade spans (e.g., all high 
schools or grades K-5), as appropriate.

Charter schools operating more than one site, authorized within the same charter petition, may 
choose to distinguish between sites by selecting “Specific Schools” and identify the site(s) where 
the actions/services will be provided. For charter schools operating only one site, “All Schools” and 
“Specific Schools” may be synonymous and, therefore, either would be appropriate. Charter 
schools may use either term provided they are used in a consistent manner through the LCAP.

For Actions/Services Contributing to Meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:
Students to be Served
For any action/service contributing to the LEA’s overall demonstration that it has increased or improved 
services for unduplicated students above what is provided to all students (see Demonstration of 
Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students section, below), the LEA must identify the 
unduplicated student group(s) being served.  

Scope of Service

226

226



For each action/service contributing to meeting the increased or improved services requirement, 
identify scope of service by indicating “LEA-wide”, “Schoolwide”, or “Limited to Unduplicated 
Student Group(s)”. The LEA must select one of the following three options:

 If the action/service is being funded and provided to upgrade the entire educational program of 
the LEA, place a check mark next to “LEA-wide.”

 If the action/service is being funded and provided to upgrade the entire educational program of 
a particular school or schools, place a check mark next to “schoolwide”. 

 If the action/service being funded and provided is limited to the unduplicated students identified 
in “Students to be Served”, place a check mark next to “Limited to Student Groups”. 

For charter schools and single-school school districts, “LEA-wide” and “Schoolwide” may be 
synonymous and, therefore, either would be appropriate. For charter schools operating multiple 
schools (determined by a unique CDS code) under a single charter, use “LEA-wide” to refer to all 
schools under the charter and use “Schoolwide” to refer to a single school authorized within the 
same charter petition. Charter schools operating a single school may use “LEA-wide” or 
“Schoolwide” provided these terms are used in a consistent manner through the LCAP.

Location(s)
Identify the location where the action/services will be provided. If the services are provided to all 
schools within the LEA, the LEA must indicate “All Schools”. If the services are provided to specific 
schools within the LEA or specific grade spans only, the LEA must mark “Specific Schools” or “Specific 
Grade Spans”. Identify the individual school or a subset of schools or grade spans (e.g., all high 
schools or grades K-5), as appropriate.

Charter schools operating more than one site, authorized within the same charter petition, may 
choose to distinguish between sites by selecting “Specific Schools” and identify the site(s) where 
the actions/services will be provided. For charter schools operating only one site, “All Schools” and 
“Specific Schools” may be synonymous and, therefore, either would be appropriate. Charter 
schools may use either term provided they are used in a consistent manner through the LCAP.

Actions/Services
For each LCAP year, identify the actions to be performed and services provided to meet the described 
goal.  Actions and services that are implemented to achieve the identified goal may be grouped 
together.  LEAs may number the action/service using the “Action #” box for ease of reference.

New/Modified/Unchanged: 
 Check “New” if the action/service is being added in any of the three years of the LCAP to 

meet the articulated goal. 

 Check “Modified” if the action/service was included to meet an articulated goal and has 
been changed or modified in any way from the prior year description.

 Check “Unchanged” if the action/service was included to meet an articulated goal and has 
not been changed or modified in any way from the prior year description.  

o If a planned action/service is anticipated to remain unchanged for the duration of the 
plan, an LEA may check “Unchanged” and leave the subsequent year columns 
blank rather than having to copy/paste the action/service into the subsequent year 
columns. Budgeted expenditures may be treated in the same way as applicable.

Note: The goal from the prior year may or may not be included in the current three-year LCAP. For 
example, when developing year 1 of the LCAP, the goals articulated in year 3 of the preceding 
three-year LCAP will be from the prior year.

Charter schools may complete the LCAP to align with the term of the charter school’s budget that is 
submitted to the school’s authorizer. Accordingly, a charter school submitting a one-year budget to its 
authorizer may choose not to complete the year 2 and year 3 portions of the Goals, Actions, and 

227

227



Services section of the template.  If year 2 and/or year 3 is not applicable, charter schools must specify 
as such.
Budgeted Expenditures
For each action/service, list and describe budgeted expenditures for each school year to implement 
these actions, including where those expenditures can be found in the LEA’s budget. The LEA must 
reference all fund sources for each proposed expenditure. Expenditures must be classified using the 
California School Accounting Manual as required by Education Code sections 52061, 52067, and 
47606.5. 
Expenditures that are included more than once in an LCAP must be indicated as a duplicated 
expenditure and include a reference to the goal and action/service where the expenditure first appears 
in the LCAP.
If a county superintendent of schools has jurisdiction over a single school district, and chooses to 
complete a single LCAP, the LCAP must clearly articulate to which entity’s budget (school district or 
county superintendent of schools) all budgeted expenditures are aligned.

Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students
This section must be completed for each LCAP year. When developing the LCAP in year 2 or year 3, copy the 
Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students table and mark the appropriate 
LCAP year. Using the copy of the table, complete the table as required for the current year LCAP. Retain all 
prior year tables for this section for each of the three years within the LCAP.

Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds
Identify the amount of funds in the LCAP year calculated on the basis of the number and concentration 
of low income, foster youth, and English learner students as determined pursuant to 5 CCR 
15496(a)(5). 
Percentage to Increase or Improve Services
Identify the percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils must be increased or improved as 
compared to the services provided to all students in the LCAP year as calculated pursuant to 5 CCR 
15496(a)(7).

Consistent with the requirements of 5 CCR 15496, describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are 
increased or improved by at least the percentage calculated as compared to services provided for all students 
in the LCAP year.  To improve services means to grow services in quality and to increase services means to 
grow services in quantity.  This description must address how the action(s)/service(s) limited for one or more 
unduplicated student group(s), and any schoolwide or districtwide action(s)/service(s) supported by the 
appropriate description, taken together, result in the required proportional increase or improvement in services 
for unduplicated pupils.

If the overall increased or improved services include any actions/services being funded and provided on a 
schoolwide or districtwide basis, identify each action/service and include the required descriptions supporting 
each action/service as follows. 

For those services being provided on an LEA-wide basis:

 For school districts with an unduplicated pupil percentage of 55% or more, and for charter schools and 
county offices of education: Describe how these services are principally directed to and effective in 
meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priorities.

 For school districts with an unduplicated pupil percentage of less than 55%: Describe how these services 
are principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in the state and any 
local priorities. Also describe how the services are the most effective use of the funds to meet these 
goals for its unduplicated pupils. Provide the basis for this determination, including any alternatives 
considered, supporting research, experience or educational theory.

228

228



For school districts only, identify in the description those services being funded and provided on a schoolwide 
basis, and include the required description supporting the use of the funds on a schoolwide basis:

 For schools with 40% or more enrollment of unduplicated pupils: Describe how these services are 
principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for its unduplicated pupils in the state and any 
local priorities.

 For school districts expending funds on a schoolwide basis at a school with less than 40% enrollment of 
unduplicated pupils: Describe how these services are principally directed to and how the services are 
the most effective use of the funds to meet its goals for English learners, low income students and 
foster youth, in the state and any local priorities.

State Priorities
Priority 1: Basic Services addresses the degree to which:

A. Teachers in the LEA are appropriately assigned and fully credentialed in the subject area and for the 
pupils they are teaching;

B. Pupils in the school district have sufficient access to the standards-aligned instructional materials; and
C. School facilities are maintained in good repair.

Priority 2: Implementation of State Standards addresses:
A. The implementation of state board adopted academic content and performance standards for all 

students, which are: 
a. English Language Arts – Common Core State Standards for English Language Arts
b. Mathematics – Common Core State Standards for Mathematics
c. English Language Development
d. Career Technical Education
e. Health Education Content Standards
f. History-Social Science
g. Model School Library Standards
h. Physical Education Model Content Standards
i. Next Generation Science Standards
j. Visual and Performing Arts
k. World Language; and

B. How the programs and services will enable English learners to access the CCSS and the ELD 
standards for purposes of gaining academic content knowledge and English language proficiency.

Priority 3: Parental Involvement addresses:
A. The efforts the school district makes to seek parent input in making decisions for the school district and 

each individual school site;
B. How the school district will promote parental participation in programs for unduplicated pupils; and 
C. How the school district will promote parental participation in programs for individuals with exceptional 

needs.
Priority 4: Pupil Achievement as measured by all of the following, as applicable:

A. Statewide assessments;
B. The Academic Performance Index;
C. The percentage of pupils who have successfully completed courses that satisfy UC or CSU entrance 

requirements, or programs of study that align with state board approved career technical educational 
standards and framework;

D. The percentage of English learner pupils who make progress toward English proficiency as measured 
by the CELDT;

E. The English learner reclassification rate;
F. The percentage of pupils who have passed an advanced placement examination with a score of 3 or 

higher; and
G. The percentage of pupils who participate in, and demonstrate college preparedness pursuant to, the 

Early Assessment Program, or any subsequent assessment of college preparedness.
Priority 5: Pupil Engagement as measured by all of the following, as applicable:

A. School attendance rates;
B. Chronic absenteeism rates;

229

229



C. Middle school dropout rates;
D. High school dropout rates; and
E. High school graduation rates;

Priority 6: School Climate as measured by all of the following, as applicable:
A. Pupil suspension rates;
B. Pupil expulsion rates; and
C. Other local measures, including surveys of pupils, parents, and teachers on the sense of safety and 

school connectedness.
Priority 7: Course Access addresses the extent to which pupils have access to and are enrolled in:

A. S broad course of study including courses described under Sections 51210 and 51220(a)-(i), as 
applicable;

B. Programs and services developed and provided to unduplicated pupils; and
C. Programs and services developed and provided to individuals with exceptional needs.

Priority 8: Pupil Outcomes addresses pupil outcomes, if available, for courses described under Sections 
51210 and 51220(a)-(i), as applicable. 
Priority 9: Coordination of Instruction of Expelled Pupils (COE Only) addresses how the county 
superintendent of schools will coordinate instruction of expelled pupils
Priority 10. Coordination of Services for Foster Youth (COE Only) addresses how the county 
superintendent of schools will coordinate services for foster children, including:

A. Working with the county child welfare agency to minimize changes in school placement 
B. Providing education-related information to the county child welfare agency to assist in the delivery of 

services to foster children, including educational status and progress information that is required to be 
included in court reports;

C. Responding to requests from the juvenile court for information and working with the juvenile court to 
ensure the delivery and coordination of necessary educational services; and

D. Establishing a mechanism for the efficient expeditious transfer of health and education records and the 
health and education passport.

Local Priorities address:
A. Local priority goals; and
B. Methods for measuring progress toward local goals.

230

230



APPENDIX A: PRIORITIES 5 AND 6 RATE CALCULATION INSTRUCTIONS

For the purposes of completing the LCAP in reference to the state priorities under Education Code sections 
52060 and 52066, as applicable to type of LEA, the following shall apply:

(a) “Chronic absenteeism rate” shall be calculated as follows:

(1) The number of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during the academic year 
(July 1 – June 30) who are chronically absent where “chronic absentee” means a pupil who is 
absent 10 percent or more of the schooldays in the school year when the total number of days a 
pupil is absent is divided by the total number of days the pupil is enrolled and school was actually 
taught in the total number of days the pupil is enrolled and school was actually taught in the regular 
day schools of the district, exclusive of Saturdays and Sundays.

(2) The unduplicated count of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during the 
academic year (July 1 – June 30).

(3) Divide (1) by (2).

(b) “Middle School dropout rate” shall be calculated as set forth in California Code of Regulations, title 5, 
Section 1039.1.

 
(c) “High school dropout rate” shall be calculated as follows: 

(1) The number of cohort members who dropout by the end of year 4 in the cohort where “cohort” is 
defined as the number of first-time grade 9 pupils in year 1 (starting cohort) plus pupils who transfer 
in, minus pupils who transfer out, emigrate, or die during school years 1, 2, 3, and 4.

(2) The total number of cohort members.

(3) Divide (1) by (2).

(d) “High school graduation rate” shall be calculated as follows:

(1) The number of cohort members who earned a regular high school diploma [or earned an adult 
education high school diploma or passed the California High School Proficiency Exam] by the end 
of year 4 in the cohort where “cohort” is defined as the number of first-time grade 9 pupils in year 1 
(starting cohort) plus pupils who transfer in, minus pupils who transfer out, emigrate, or die during 
school years 1, 2, 3, and 4.

(2) The total number of cohort members.

(3) Divide (1) by (2).

(e) “Suspension rate” shall be calculated as follows:

(1) The unduplicated count of pupils involved in one or more incidents for which the pupil was 
suspended during the academic year (July 1 – June 30).

(2) The unduplicated count of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during the 
academic year (July 1 – June 30).

(3) Divide (1) by (2).

231

231



(f) “Expulsion rate” shall be calculated as follows:

(1) The unduplicated count of pupils involved in one or more incidents for which the pupil was expelled 
during the academic year (July 1 – June 30).

(2) The unduplicated count of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during the 
academic year (July 1 – June 30).

(3) Divide (1) by (2).

NOTE: Authority cited: Sections 42238.07 and 52064, Education Code. Reference: Sections 2574, 

2575, 42238.01, 42238.02, 42238.03, 42238.07, 47605, 47605.6, 47606.5, 48926, 52052, 52060, 

52061, 52062, 52063, 52064, 52066, 52067, 52068, 52069, 52070, 52070.5, and 64001,; 20 U.S.C. 

Sections 6312 and 6314.

232

232



APPENDIX B: GUIDING QUESTIONS
Guiding Questions: Annual Review and Analysis

1) How have the actions/services addressed the needs of all pupils and did the provisions of those 
services result in the desired outcomes?

2) How have the actions/services addressed the needs of all subgroups of pupils identified pursuant to 
Education Code Section 52052, including, but not limited to, English learners, low-income pupils, and 
foster youth; and did the provision of those actions/services result in the desired outcomes? 

3) How have the actions/services addressed the identified needs and goals of specific school sites and 
were these actions/services effective in achieving the desired outcomes?

4) What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was examined to review progress 
toward goals in the annual update?

5) What progress has been achieved toward the goal and expected measurable outcome(s)? How 
effective were the actions and services in making progress toward the goal? What changes to goals, 
actions, services, and expenditures are being made in the LCAP as a result of the review of progress 
and assessment of the effectiveness of the actions and services? 

6) What differences are there between budgeted expenditures and estimated actual annual expenditures? 
What were the reasons for any differences?

Guiding Questions: Stakeholder Engagement

1) How have applicable stakeholders (e.g., parents and pupils, including parents of unduplicated pupils 
and unduplicated pupils identified in Education Code Section 42238.01; community members; local 
bargaining units; LEA personnel; county child welfare agencies; county office of education foster youth 
services programs, court-appointed special advocates, and other foster youth stakeholders; community 
organizations representing English learners; and others as appropriate) been engaged and involved in 
developing, reviewing, and supporting implementation of the LCAP? 

2) How have stakeholders been included in the LEA’s process in a timely manner to allow for engagement 
in the development of the LCAP?

3) What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was made available to stakeholders 
related to the state priorities and used by the LEA to inform the LCAP goal setting process? How was 
the information made available?

4) What changes, if any, were made in the LCAP prior to adoption as a result of written comments or other 
feedback received by the LEA through any of the LEA’s engagement processes?

5) What specific actions were taken to meet statutory requirements for stakeholder engagement pursuant 
to Education Code sections 52062, 52068, or 47606.5, as applicable, including engagement with 
representatives of parents and guardians of pupils identified in Education Code Section 42238.01?

6) What specific actions were taken to consult with pupils to meet the requirements 5 CCR 15495(a)?
7) How has stakeholder involvement been continued and supported?  How has the involvement of these 

stakeholders supported improved outcomes for pupils, including unduplicated pupils, related to the 
state priorities?

233

233



Guiding Questions: Goals, Actions, and Services

1) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to “Conditions of Learning”: Basic 
Services (Priority 1), the Implementation of State Standards (Priority 2), and Course Access (Priority 
7)?

2) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to “Pupil Outcomes”: Pupil Achievement 
(Priority 4), Pupil Outcomes (Priority 8), Coordination of Instruction of Expelled Pupils (Priority 9 – COE 
Only), and Coordination of Services for Foster Youth (Priority 10 – COE Only)? 

3) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to parent and pupil “Engagement”: 
Parental Involvement (Priority 3), Pupil Engagement (Priority 5), and School Climate (Priority 6)?

4) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address any locally-identified priorities? 
5) How have the unique needs of individual school sites been evaluated to inform the development of 

meaningful district and/or individual school site goals (e.g., input from site level advisory groups, staff, 
parents, community, pupils; review of school level plans; in-depth school level data analysis, etc.)? 

6) What are the unique goals for unduplicated pupils as defined in Education Code sections 42238.01 and 
bgroups as defined in section 52052 that are different from the LEA’s goals for all pupils?

7) What are the specific expected measurable outcomes associated with each of the goals annually and 
over the term of the LCAP?

8) What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was considered/reviewed to develop 
goals to address each state or local priority?

9) What information was considered/reviewed for individual school sites?
10) What information was considered/reviewed for subgroups identified in Education Code Section 52052?
11) What actions/services will be provided to all pupils, to subgroups of pupils identified pursuant to 

Education Code Section 52052, to specific school sites, to English learners, to low-income pupils, 
and/or to foster youth to achieve goals identified in the LCAP?

12) How do these actions/services link to identified goals and expected measurable outcomes? 
13) What expenditures support changes to actions/services as a result of the goal identified?  Where can 

these expenditures be found in the LEA’s budget?

Prepared by the California Department of Education, October 2016

234

234



LCAP Expenditure Summary

Total Expenditures by Funding Source

Funding Source
2016-17

Annual Update
Budgeted

2016-17
Annual Update

Actual
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

2017-18
through
2019-20

Total
All Funding Sources 1,567,447.00 1,465,465.49 1,142,223.00 1,154,219.00 1,076,319.00 3,372,761.00

944,318.00 483,117.00 19,000.00 500.00 500.00 20,000.00
Base 500.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Federal Funds 0.00 0.00 11,030.00 11,348.00 11,688.00 34,066.00
Governors CTE Initiative: California Partnership 
Academies

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 195.00 195.00

LCFF 613,546.00 709,138.49 686,721.00 721,284.00 633,988.00 2,041,993.00
Locally Defined 0.00 4,408.00 170,977.00 177,873.00 185,425.00 534,275.00
Lottery 6,083.00 4,480.00 4,942.00 5,000.00 5,050.00 14,992.00
Other 0.00 263,822.00 3,616.00 0.00 0.00 3,616.00
Special Education 0.00 0.00 226,568.00 217,699.00 157,689.00 601,956.00
Supplemental 3,000.00 0.00 19,369.00 20,515.00 21,784.00 61,668.00
Title I 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 60,000.00 60,000.00

* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections.

235

235



Total Expenditures by Object Type

Object Type
2016-17

Annual Update
Budgeted

2016-17
Annual Update

Actual
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

2017-18
through
2019-20

Total
All Expenditure Types 1,567,447.00 1,465,465.49 1,142,223.00 1,154,219.00 1,076,319.00 3,372,761.00

1,229,961.00 588,077.00 54,972.00 189,191.00 139,362.00 383,525.00
0000: Unrestricted 0.00 371,129.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 0.00 210,045.00 287,346.00 201,277.00 205,263.00 693,886.00
2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries 39,746.00 37,314.00 164,337.00 189,720.00 169,729.00 523,786.00
3000-3999: Employee Benefits 160,125.00 122,250.49 157,663.00 109,586.00 100,648.00 367,897.00
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 30,365.00 18,614.00 29,849.00 32,405.00 33,882.00 96,136.00
5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures

12,720.00 20,803.00 92,116.00 93,763.00 81,089.00 266,968.00

5800: Professional/Consulting Services And 
Operating Expenditures

3,000.00 1,332.00 230,879.00 217,867.00 220,856.00 669,602.00

5900: Communications 0.00 0.00 11,950.00 12,955.00 18,045.00 42,950.00
7000-7439: Other Outgo 91,530.00 95,901.00 113,111.00 107,455.00 107,445.00 328,011.00

* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections.

236

236



Total Expenditures by Object Type and Funding Source

Object Type Funding Source
2016-17
Annual 
Update

Budgeted

2016-17
Annual 
Update
Actual

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20
2017-18
through
2019-20

Total
All Expenditure Types All Funding Sources 1,567,447.00 1,465,465.49 1,142,223.00 1,154,219.00 1,076,319.00 3,372,761.00

703,950.00 325,146.00 7,000.00 0.00 0.00 7,000.00
Base 500.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
LCFF 516,428.00 253,543.00 47,972.00 97,415.00 45,751.00 191,138.00
Locally Defined 0.00 4,408.00 0.00 91,776.00 93,611.00 185,387.00
Lottery 6,083.00 4,480.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Supplemental 3,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0000: Unrestricted LCFF 0.00 371,129.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

LCFF 0.00 0.00 197,370.00 201,277.00 205,263.00 603,910.00

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

Locally Defined 0.00 0.00 89,976.00 0.00 0.00 89,976.00

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries

Other 0.00 210,045.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries

39,746.00 37,314.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries

Federal Funds 0.00 0.00 9,470.00 9,659.00 9,853.00 28,982.00

2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries

LCFF 0.00 0.00 100,281.00 124,384.00 103,084.00 327,749.00

2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries

Locally Defined 0.00 0.00 42,117.00 42,959.00 43,819.00 128,895.00

2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries

Supplemental 0.00 0.00 12,469.00 12,718.00 12,973.00 38,160.00

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

84,552.00 6,709.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

Federal Funds 0.00 0.00 995.00 1,124.00 1,270.00 3,389.00

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

LCFF 75,573.00 61,764.49 118,104.00 64,849.00 49,998.00 232,951.00

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

Locally Defined 0.00 0.00 31,664.00 35,816.00 40,569.00 108,049.00

237

237



Total Expenditures by Object Type and Funding Source

Object Type Funding Source
2016-17
Annual 
Update

Budgeted

2016-17
Annual 
Update
Actual

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20
2017-18
through
2019-20

Total
3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

Other 0.00 53,777.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3000-3999: Employee 
Benefits

Supplemental 0.00 0.00 6,900.00 7,797.00 8,811.00 23,508.00

4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies

21,540.00 16,715.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies

Federal Funds 0.00 0.00 65.00 65.00 65.00 195.00

4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies

LCFF 8,825.00 1,899.00 19,742.00 22,138.00 23,461.00 65,341.00

4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies

Locally Defined 0.00 0.00 5,100.00 5,202.00 5,306.00 15,608.00

4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies

Lottery 0.00 0.00 4,942.00 5,000.00 5,050.00 14,992.00

5000-5999: Services And 
Other Operating Expenditures

0.00 0.00 12,000.00 500.00 500.00 13,000.00

5000-5999: Services And 
Other Operating Expenditures

Federal Funds 0.00 0.00 500.00 500.00 500.00 1,500.00

5000-5999: Services And 
Other Operating Expenditures

Governors CTE Initiative: 
California Partnership 
Academies

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 195.00 195.00

5000-5999: Services And 
Other Operating Expenditures

LCFF 12,720.00 20,803.00 79,616.00 92,763.00 79,894.00 252,273.00

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures

3,000.00 1,332.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures

LCFF 0.00 0.00 111,686.00 105,503.00 108,492.00 325,681.00

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures

Locally Defined 0.00 0.00 2,120.00 2,120.00 2,120.00 6,360.00

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures

Other 0.00 0.00 3,616.00 0.00 0.00 3,616.00

238

238



Total Expenditures by Object Type and Funding Source

Object Type Funding Source
2016-17
Annual 
Update

Budgeted

2016-17
Annual 
Update
Actual

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20
2017-18
through
2019-20

Total
5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures

Special Education 0.00 0.00 113,457.00 110,244.00 50,244.00 273,945.00

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures

Title I 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 60,000.00 60,000.00

5900: Communications LCFF 0.00 0.00 11,950.00 12,955.00 18,045.00 42,950.00
7000-7439: Other Outgo 91,530.00 95,901.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
7000-7439: Other Outgo Special Education 0.00 0.00 113,111.00 107,455.00 107,445.00 328,011.00

* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections.

239

239



Total Expenditures by Goal

Goal 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20
2017-18
through
2019-20

Total
Goal 1 342,518.00 356,965.00 372,754.00 1,072,237.00

Goal 2 567,477.00 556,841.00 566,214.00 1,690,532.00

Goal 3 8,050.00 10,665.00 8,910.00 27,625.00

Goal 4 117,127.00 121,516.00 128,441.00 367,084.00

Goal 5 107,051.00 108,232.00 0.00 215,283.00

* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections.

240

240



241

241



242

242



243

243



244

244



245

245



246

246



247

247



248

248



249

249



250

250



251

251



252

252



253

253



254

254



255

255



256

256



257

257



258

258



259

259



260

260



261

261



262

262



263

263



264

264



265

265



266

266



267

267



268

268



269

269



270

270



271

271



272

272



273

273



274

274



275

275



276

276



277

277



278

278


	Resolution 2017-18 #2 Re Sufficiency of Instructional Materials Set 7 2017.pdf
	Resolution 2017-18 #2
	REGARDING SUFFICIENCY OR INSUFFICIENCY OF INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS

	Sep 7 2017 16-17 Unaudited Actuals.pdf
	2016-17 Unaudited Actuals




